THREE VILLAGE CENTRAL SCHOOL DISTRICT STONY BROOK, NEW YORK

BOARD OF EDUCATION AGENDA MATERIALS

DATE OF BOARD MEETING: July 7, 2021 DATE SUBMITTED: July 2, 2021

OFFICE OF ORIGIN: District Clerk CATEGORY OF ITEM: Information

TITLE: POLICY

Staff Recommendation:

Be it RESOLVED that the Board of Education accept the Policies delineated below:

enter Resources Selection and Adoption
rnet-Network Use
uct
l Hiring

Background - Rationale:

Adopt the Policies at the First Reading or move to Second Reading.

NOT AN OFFICIAL RECORD; SUBJECT TO CHANGE

INFORMATION CENTER RESOURCES SELECTION AND ADOPTION

The Board of Education requires the establishment and maintenance in each building of an information center which provide services to students and staff. The Board delegates the responsibility to the Superintendent or his/her designee for the selection and purchase of books and resources.

The school information specialists will work closely with students, staff and administrative personnel in the selection and evaluation of materials for purchase.

In order to provide the Superintendent and his/her staff with guidance in the acquisition of instructional resource material, such as library books, <u>digital resources</u>, references, audiovisuals, maps, etc., the Board endorses the <u>following</u> guidelines approved by the American Library Association that such resources:

- 1. provide information that will enrich and support the curriculum, taking into consideration the varied interests, abilities, and maturity levels of the students served;
- 2. provide information that will stimulate growth in factual knowledge, literary appreciation, aesthetic values, and ethical standards;
- 3. provide information that will enable students to make intelligent judgments in their daily lives;
- 4. provide information on opposing sides of controversial issues so that young citizens may develop under guidance the practice of critical reading and thinking;
- 5. provide information representative of the many religious, ethnic, and cultural groups and their contributions to our American heritage; and
- 6. include, in the body of works as a whole, characters and settings which reflect the racial, ethnic, cultural and religious makeup of the student body and the country as a whole;
- 5.7.promote the understanding and appreciation of culture, class, language, race, ethnicity, and other differences that contribute to the diversity of American culture; and
- 6.8. place principle above personal opinion and reason above prejudice in the selection of materials of the highest quality in order to assure a comprehensive collection appropriate for the users of the library.

Initial purchase suggestions for information center resources will be accepted from all personnel. Students should also be encouraged to make suggestions. The professional information center staff shall be responsible for evaluation and recommendation of all information center resources to be included in the information center.

The following are the criteria for the selection and maintenance of school information center resources:

1. The primary purpose of the collection is to provide books and non-book resources which will implement and enrich the curriculum in all areas.

- 2. The information center collection must meet the varied reading interests and abilities of all students.
- 3. The resources provided must encourage and stimulate the development of interests, promote understanding, and foster attitudes which will carry the student into adult life.
- 4. The resources should be provided which encourage critical judgment and evaluation.
- 5. The resources selected should assist in developing experiences which will lead the student into the joys and the satisfaction known to those who understand and appreciate books.
- 6. The resources should present and analyze intergroup tension and conflict objectively, placing emphasis upon resolving social and economic problems.
- 7. Where applicable the resources will meet Board Policy 4526, Internet/Network Use.
- 8. To ensure a vital collection of continued value to the school community, out dated outdated or no longer useful resources should be weeded from the collection on a systematic basis. These resources should be disposed of or put in storage depending upon condition and possible future use. (6900, Disposal of District Property)

Any criticism of instructional materials that are in the schools that cannot be resolved informally shall be submitted in writing to the Superintendent of Schools. An Instructional Material Review Committee, consisting of an administrator, a librarian, a teacher and a parent of a student enrolled in the district, will be designated by the Superintendent to investigate and judge-evaluate the challenged material.

The committee shall make recommendations to the Superintendent concerning the disposition of the complaint, and the Superintendent will issue a decision. This decision may be appealed to the Board and the decision of the Board shall be final.

Cross-ref: 1420, Complaints about Curricula or Instructional Materials

6900, Disposal of District Property

<u>Ref</u>: Education Law §§1709(15); 1711(2)(d)

Board of Educ., Island Trees UFSD v. Pico, 457 US 853 (1982)

Adoption date: December, 1991

Revised: June 23, 1998

August 24, 2010 May , 2021

COMPUTER, INTERNET/NETWORK USE

The Board of Education is committed to optimizing student learning and teaching. The Board considers student access to a computer network, including the Internet, to be a powerful, valuable educational and research tool, and encourages the use of computers and computer-related technology in District classrooms solely for the purpose of advancing and promoting learning and teaching.

The computer network can provide a forum for learning various software applications and through online databases and resources, interactive software programs, Web 2.0 tools and electronic mail, and similar programs can significantly enhance educational experiences and provide Statewide, national and global communication opportunities for staff and students.

The Board authorizes student use of personal devices to access the District's computer network under the direction and approval of a teacher (also see Policy 5695) and if the student complies with the district's registration process. Use of any electronic device (district or personally owned) by staff or student, will be done so following the regulations set forth in this policy.

All users of the District's computer network and the Internet shall be informed that use is a privilege, not a right, and that use entails responsibility. The District reserves the right to control access to the Internet for all users of its computers and network. The District may either allow or prohibit certain kinds of online activity, or access to specific websites.

The Superintendent of Schools, in conjunction with the Executive Director of Instructional Technology, shall establish regulations governing the use and security of the District's computer network. All users of the District's computer network and equipment shall comply with this policy and those regulations. Failure to comply may result in disciplinary action as well as suspension and/or revocation of computer access privileges. For District owned devices, such as desktop computers, Chromebooks, laptops, and iPads, all users are expected to protect the District's computer equipment and other electronic devices from damage and theft.

The Executive Director of Instructional Technology and the Director of Technology Systems & Cybersecurity will prepare in-service programs for the training and development of District staff in computer skills, all as well as supporting the use and expansion of computer technology for instructional programs.

With increased concern about identity theft, unwarranted invasion of privacy and the need to protect personally identifiable information, prior to students being directed by staff to use any cloud-based educational software/application, staff must get approval from the Executive Director of Instructional Technology. The Executive Director of Instructional Technology will determine if a formal contract is required or if the terms of service are sufficient to address privacy and security requirements, and if parental permission is needed.

The Superintendent, working in conjunction with the designated purchasing agent for the District, the Executive Director of Instructional Technology, the Director of Technology Systems & Cybersecurity and the District Technology Committee, will be responsible for the purchase and distribution of computer software and hardware throughout District schools. They shall prepare and submit for the Board's approval a comprehensive multi-year technology plan which shall be revised as necessary to reflect changing technology and/or District needs.

Adoption date: December 2006

Revised: March 9, 2010

September 14, 2010 September 3, 2014 April 22, 2015 June , 2021

COMPUTER USE IN INSTRUCTION REGULATION

The following rules and regulations govern the use of the <u>D</u>district's computer network system and access to the Internet. For purposes of this regulation, the computer network coordinator refers to the Executive Director of Instructional Technology.

I. Administration

- The Superintendent of Schools shall designate the Director of Instructional Technology and the Director of Technology Systems & Cybersecurity a computer network coordinator to oversee the <u>D</u>district's computer network.
- The <u>Director of Instructional Technology and the Director of Technology Systems & Cybersecurity computer network coordinator</u> shall monitor and examine all network activities, as appropriate, to ensure proper use of the system.
- The <u>Director of Instructional Technology computer network coordinator</u> shall be responsible for disseminating and interpreting district policy and regulations governing use of the <u>Dd</u>istrict's network at the building level with all network users.
- The <u>Director of Instructional Technology computer network coordinator</u> shall provide employee training for proper use of the network and will ensure that staff supervising students using the <u>Ddistrict</u>'s network provide similar training to their students, including providing copies <u>and/or links to theof Ddistrict</u> policy and regulations governing use of the <u>Ddistrict</u>'s network.
- The <u>Director of Technology Systems & Cybersecurity eomputer network coordinator</u> shall ensure that all programs and software loaded onto the computer network have been scanned for computer viruses.
- The <u>Director of Instructional Technology computer network coordinator</u> will review staff requests to use <u>any paid or unpaid software application</u>, including 'cloud-based' educational software/applications to ensure that personally identifiable information (PII) is protected in accordance with <u>Ddistrict</u> standards prior to student use.
- All student agreements to abide by district policy and regulations and parental consent forms shall be kept on file in the Delistrict office either digitally or in hardcopy form.
- Any student or staff member who wishes to use the <u>Ddistrict</u>'s name, logo, or any comparable derivative that would imply the <u>Ddistrict</u> on any website or network, paid or unpaid, must receive prior written permission from the Superintendent or his/her designee.
- The <u>Dd</u>istrict has reviewed, selected and purchased online software for educational use by students and staff. With increased concern about identity theft, unwarranted invasion of

Forma

privacy and the need to protect personally identifiable information, prior to students being directed by staff to use any <u>paid or unpaid software application</u>, including cloud-based educational software application, staff must obtain approval from the <u>Executive</u> Director of Instructional Technology. The Director of Instructional Technology will determine if the terms of service are sufficient to address privacy or if a formal contract is required.

II. Internet Access

- Students and staff will be provided internet access.
- Students in grades <u>K2</u>-12 will be provided with individual access accounts
- Student Internet access may be restricted depending on the grade level.

III. Acceptable Use and Conduct

- Access to the <u>D</u>district's computer network is provided for educational purposes and research consistent with the <u>D</u>district's mission and goals.
- Use of the <u>D</u>district's computer network is a privilege, not a right. Inappropriate use may result in the suspension or revocation of that privilege.
- Each individual in whose name an access account is issued is responsible at all times for
 its proper use. Passwords must be changed periodically. <u>The Director of Instructional</u>
 <u>Technology and/or the Director of Technology Systems & Cybersecurity, may periodically
 force password changes or multi-factor authentication (MFA) to any or all users of District
 resources or devices.</u>
- All network users are expected to abide by the generally accepted rules of network etiquette. This includes being polite and using only appropriate language. Abusive or sexual language or images, vulgarities and swear words are all inappropriate, as well as any other activity or usage that violate any provision of the District's Code of Conduct.
- Network users identifying a security problem on the <u>D</u>district's network must notify the appropriate teacher, administrator, or the <u>D</u>irector of <u>Technology Systems & Cybersecurity computer network coordinator</u>. Under no circumstance should the user demonstrate the problem to anyone other than to the <u>D</u>district official or employee being notified.
- Any network user identified as a security risk or having a history of violations of district District computer use guidelines may be denied access to the district's network.

IV. Prohibited Activity and Uses

The following is a <u>non-inclusive</u> list of prohibited activity concerning use of the <u>Delistrict's</u> computer network. Violation of any of these prohibitions may result in discipline or other appropriate penalty, including suspension or revocation of a user's access to the network.

- Using the network for commercial activity, including advertising.
- Infringing on any copyrights or other intellectual property rights, including copying, installing, receiving, transmitting or making available any copyrighted software on the district computer network.
- Using the network to receive, transmit or make available to others obscene, offensive, or sexually explicit material.
- Using the network to receive, transmit or make available to others, messages that are racist, sexist, abusive or harassing to others.
- Using another user's account or password.
- Using the network to support or oppose political candidates or propositions submitted for vote.
- Attempting to read, delete, copy or modify the electronic mail (e-mail) or files of other system users and deliberately interfering with the ability of other system users to send and/or receive e-mail or impact the integrity of files.
- Forging or attempting to forge e-mail messages.
- Engaging in vandalism. Vandalism is defined as any malicious attempt to harm or destroy district equipment or materials, data of another user of the <u>district's District's</u> network or of any of the entities or other networks that are connected to the <u>i</u>Internet. This includes, but is not limited to, creating and/or placing a computer virus, <u>malware</u>, or <u>keylogger</u> on <u>a computer or</u> the network.
- Using the network to send anonymous messages or files.
- Using the network to receive, transmit or make available to others a message that is inconsistent with the district's Code of Conduct.
- Revealing the personal address, telephone number or other personal information of oneself or another person.
- Intentionally disrupting network traffic or crashing the network and connected systems.
- Installing personal software on the <u>district's District's</u> computers and/or network without
 the permission of the <u>Director of Instructional Technologyappropriate district official or
 employee</u>.
- Using district District computing resources for commercial or financial gain or fraud.

- Stealing data, equipment or intellectual property.
- Gaining or seeking to gain unauthorized access to any files, resources, or computer, or phone systems, or vandalize the data of another user.
- Wastefully using finite district resources.
- Changing or exceeding resource quotas as set by the <u>district District</u> without the permission
 of the <u>Director of Technology Systems & Cybersecurity appropriate district official or
 employee</u>.
- Using the network while access privileges are suspended or revoked.
- Using the network in a fashion inconsistent with directions from teachers, administrators and other staff and generally accepted network etiquette.

V. No Privacy Guarantee

Students and staff using the district's District's computer network should not expect, nor does the district guarantee privacy for files, electronic mail (e-mail), attachments, or any use of the district's computer network. The district reserves the right to access and view any material stored on district equipment or any material used in conjunction with the district's District's computer network.

VI. Sanctions

All users of the <u>district's District's</u> computer network and equipment are required to comply with the <u>district's District's</u> policy and regulations governing the <u>district's District's</u> computer network. Failure to comply with the policy or regulation may result in disciplinary action as well as suspension and/or revocation of computer access privileges.

In addition, illegal activities are strictly prohibited. Any information pertaining to or implicating illegal activity will be reported to the proper authorities. Transmission of any material in violation of any federal, state and/or local law or regulation is prohibited. This includes, but is not limited to materials protected by copyright, threatening or obscene material or material protected by trade secret. Users must respect all intellectual and property rights and laws.

VII. District Responsibilities

The district makes no warranties of any kind, either expressed or implied, for the access being provided. Further, the district assumes no responsibility for the quality, availability, accuracy, nature or reliability of the service and/or information provided. Users of the district's District's computer network and the Henrich use information at their own risk. Each user is responsible for verifying the integrity and authenticity of the information that is used and provided.

The <u>district</u> will not be responsible for any damages suffered by any user, including, but not limited to, loss of data resulting from delays, non-deliveries, misdeliveries, or

service interruptions caused by its own negligence or the errors or omissions of any user. The <u>district District</u> also will not be responsible for unauthorized financial obligations resulting from the use of or access to the <u>district's District's</u> computer network or the Internet.

Further, even though the <u>district District</u> may use technical or manual means to regulate access and information, these methods do not provide a foolproof means of enforcing the provisions of the <u>district District</u> policy and regulation.

Revised: April 22, 2015

June , 2021

TABLE OF CONTENTS

		PAGE
5300.01	Introduction	3
5300.05	Definitions	4
5300.10	Student Rights and Responsibilities	6
5300.15	Essential Partners	8
5300.20	Student Dress Code	11
5300.21	Internet/Network Use	12
5300.25	Prohibited Student Conduct	13
5300.26	Weapons Policy	20
5300.27	Gang-Related Activity and Affiliation	21
5300.30	Reporting Violations (Uniform Violent Incident Report)	22
5300.35	Disciplinary Consequences, Procedures and Referrals	23
5300.40	Alternative Instruction	33
5300.45	Discipline of Students with Disabilities	34
5300.50	Corporal Punishment	41
5300.55	Student Searches and Interrogations	42
5300.55	Procedures for Use of Metal Detection in the Three Village Central School District	46
5300.60	Visitors to the Schools	49
5300.65	Public Conduct on School Property	50

		PAGE
5300.70	Dissemination and Review	52
Appendix A:	Student Code of Conduct Agreement	54

INTRODUCTION

The Board of Education is committed to providing a safe and orderly educational environment where students receive and district personnel provide quality educational services without disruption or interference. Three Village is also committed to maintaining, in the schools, a climate of mutual respect and dignity to promote learning within a safe environment. Responsible behavior by students, teachers, other district personnel, parents and other visitors is essential to achieving this goal.

The District has a long-standing set of expectations for conduct on school property and at school functions. These expectations are based on the principles of civility, mutual respect, citizenship, character, tolerance, honesty and integrity.

The Board recognizes the need to clearly define these expectations for acceptable conduct on school property, identify the possible consequences of unacceptable conduct, and to ensure that <u>educational and therapeutic</u> <u>actions or programs, and/or discipline</u>, when necessary, is administered promptly and fairly. To this end, the Board adopts this Code of Conduct ("Code").

Unless otherwise indicated, this Code applies to all students, school personnel, parents and other visitors when on school property or attending a school function.

DEFINITIONS

For purposes of this code, the following definitions apply.

"Disruptive student" [3214 (2-a)(b)] means an elementary or secondary student under the age of 21 who is substantially disruptive of the educational process or substantially interferes with the teacher's authority over the classroom.

A substantial interference with a teacher's authority occurs when a student demonstrates a persistent unwillingness to comply with the teacher's instructions or repeatedly violates the teacher's classroom behavior rules. Therefore, any child whose behavior and/or actions interfere with the safety, education or basic rights of other individuals, or compromises their own safety or academic well being through their own behaviors or actions will be considered a disruptive student.

"Parent" means parent, guardian or person in parental relation to a student.

"Classroom" as it pertains to this Code of Conduct means any physical or virtual space provided directly or indirectly, by the District, or one of its schools or instructional staff members, where students gather for any purpose related to an educational or co-curricular setting, including, but not limited to traditional classrooms, online instructional spaces (i.e. Google Meet, Zoom, etc.), indoor or outdoor recreational spaces, and study halls.

"School property" means in or within any building, structure, athletic playing field, playground, parking lot or land contained within the real property boundary line of a public elementary or secondary school, or in or on a school bus, as defined in Vehicle and Traffic Law §142.

"School function" means any school-sponsored extra-curricular event or activity, on or off school property.

"Violent student" means a student under the age of 21 who:

- 1. Commits an act of violence including assault upon a school employee, or attempts to do so.
- 2. Commits, while on or off school property or at a school function, an act of violence including assault upon another student or any other person lawfully on school property or at a school function, or attempts to do so.
- 3. Possesses, while on or off school property or at a school function, a weapon.
- 4. Displays, while on or off school property or at a school function, what appears to be a weapon.
- 5. Threatens, while on or off school property or at a school function, to use a weapon.
- 6. Knowingly and intentionally damages or destroys the personal property of any school employee or any person lawfully on school property or at a school function.

7. Knowingly and intentionally damages or destroys school district property.

With regard to a weapon depicted in a photograph(s) or video uploaded and/or posted to a social media platform, Administration will review the context in which the photograph(s) or video was taken and the context of the posting, including any language included in the posting.

"Assault with Physical Injury" intentionally, or recklessly, causing physical injury to another person, with or without a weapon. Pursuant to Penal Law §10.00(9), "physical injury means impairment of physical condition or substantial pain." As a general rule, a physical injury is a minor injury, such as a scrape, minor cut, or minor bruising that does not involve a risk of death, disability, or disfigurement. Assaults involving injuries that are treated by the school nurse but do not require further medical attention should be included in this category.

"Assault with Serious Physical Injury" intentionally, or recklessly, causing serious physical injury to another person with or without a weapon. Pursuant to Penal Law §10.00(10), a "serious physical injury" means physical injury which creates a substantial risk of death, or which causes serious and protracted disfigurement, protracted impairment of health, or protracted loss or impairment of the function of any bodily organ, i.e. disability." As a general rule, a serious physical injury is one that requires hospitalization or treatment in an emergency room or clinic or treatment by a licensed health professional outside of the school setting and includes, but is not limited to, a bullet wound, a serious stab or puncture wound, fractured or broken bones or teeth, concussions, cuts requiring stitches, and any other injury involving risk of death or disfigurement.

A "Weapon" is defined as 1) a firearm as defined in §921 of Title 18, United States Code, for purposes of the Gun-Free Schools Act, 2) a corrosive substance, or 3) a device or substance (capable through its design or alteration) of inflicting physical harm, including but not limited to ammunition, knives, "stun" guns, pellet guns, laser pointers, pyrotechnics, explosives or incendiary bombs, or dangerous chemicals.

"Illegal substances" include, but are not limited to, inhalants, marijuana, cocaine, LSD, PCP, amphetamines, heroin, steroids, look-alike drugs, and any substances commonly referred to as "designer drugs."

STUDENT RIGHTS AND RESPONSIBILITIES

All student interaction and communication among themselves, staff, and visitors on school property will be acceptable, civil, and respectful.

A. Student Rights

The District is committed to safeguarding the rights given to all students under State and federal law. In addition, to promote a safe, healthy, orderly, and civil school environment, all District students have the right to:

- 1. Take part in all District activities on an equal basis regardless of race, color, creed, national origin, religion, gender, or sexual orientation or disability.
- 2. Present their version of the relevant events to the appropriate school personnel in connection with the imposition of the penalty.
- 3. Access school rules and, when necessary, receive an explanation of those rules from school personnel.
- 4. A bill of rights for and responsibilities of students, which focuses upon positive student behavior and a safe and supportive school climate, written in plain-language, and publicized and explained in an age-appropriate manner to all students on an annual basis.

B. Student Responsibilities

All District students have the responsibility to:

- 1. Contribute to maintaining a safe and orderly school environment that is conducive to learning and to show respect to other persons and to property, both in in-person and in remote/virtual learning environments.
- 2. Be familiar with and abide by all District policies, rules, and regulations dealing with student conduct
- 3. Attend school every day unless they are legally excused and be in class, on time, and prepared to learn.
- 4. Work to the best of their ability in all academic and extracurricular pursuits and strive toward their highest level of achievement possible.
- 5. React to direction given by all school staff in a respectful, positive manner.
- 6. Using direct resources, work to develop mechanisms to control their anger.
- 7. Ask questions when they do not understand.
- 8. Seek help in solving problems that might lead to discipline.
- 9. Dress appropriately for school and school functions, both in in-person and in remote/virtual learning environments.
- 10. Accept responsibility and be accountable for their actions.
- 11. Conduct themselves as representatives of the District when participating in or attending school-sponsored extracurricular events and to hold themselves to the highest standards of conduct, demeanor, and sportsmanship.

12. Report safety threats to appropriate school personnel or to an adult regardless of one's impression that they may be pranks, idle threats, or bullying; for example, perceived acts of hazing, sexual harassment, and intimidation.

Subsection 5300.10

17.13. See something, say something.

18.14. Read and sign a Code of Conduct Agreement Form

ESSENTIAL PARTNERS

A. Parents/Guardians

All parents/guardians are expected to:

- 1. Recognize that the education of their child(ren) is a joint responsibility of the parents and the school community.
- 2. Send their children to school ready to participate and learn.
- 3. Ensure their children attend school regularly and on time.
- 4. Ensure absences are excused.
- 5. Insist their children be dressed and groomed in a manner consistent with the student dress code.
- 6. Help their children understand that in a democratic society appropriate rules are required to maintain a safe, orderly environment.
- 7. Know school rules and help their children understand them.
- 8. Convey to their children a supportive attitude toward education and the District.
- 9. Build good relationships with teachers, other parents and their children's friends.
- 10. Help their children deal effectively with peer pressure.
- 11. Inform school officials of changes in the home situation that may affect student conduct or performance.
- 12. Provide a place for study and ensure homework assignments are completed.
- 13. Respond promptly to school personnel when requested to do so.
- 14. Conduct yourself appropriately, using proper decorum and language.
- 15. Co-Sign Student Code of Conduct Agreement Form

B. All Staff Members

All staff members are expected to:

- 1. Maintain a climate of mutual respect and dignity, which will strengthen students' self-concept and promote confidence to learn.
- 2. Be prepared to teach.
- 3. Demonstrate interest in teaching and concern for student achievement and educational progress.
- 4. Know school policies and rules, and enforce them in a fair and consistent manner.
- 5. Communicate to students and, as needed, to parents, at an appropriate time;
 - a. Course objectives and requirements
 - b. Marking/grading procedures
 - c. Assignment deadlines
 - d. Expectations for students
 - e. Classroom discipline plan

- 6. Communicate, as needed, with parents and other teachers concerning student growth and achievement.
- 7. Immediately report and refer a violent pupil to the principal.

C. Student Support Service Personnel

- 1. Assist students in coping with peer pressure and emerging personal, social, and emotional problems.
- 2. Initiate teacher/student conferences and parent/teacher/student conferences, as necessary, as a way to resolve problems.
- 3. Regularly review students' educational progress and, as needed, career plans.
- 4. Provide information to assist students with post-secondary planning.
- 5. Encourage students to benefit from the curriculum and extracurricular programs.

D. Building Administration

- 1. Promote a safe, orderly, and stimulating school environment, supporting active teaching and learning.
- 2. Ensure that students and staff have the opportunity to communicate regularly with the Principal and approach the Principal for redress of grievances.
- 3. Evaluate on a regular basis all instructional programs.
- 4. Support the development of and student participation in appropriate extracurricular activities.
- 5. Be responsible for enforcing the Code of Conduct and ensuring that all cases are resolved promptly and fairly.

E. Superintendent

- 1. Promote a safe, orderly and stimulating school environment supporting active teaching and learning.
- 2. Review with district administrators the policies of the Board of Education and State and federal laws relating to school operations and management.
- 3. Inform the Board about educational trends relating to student discipline.
- 4. Work to create instructional programs that minimize problems of misconduct and are sensitive to student and teacher needs.
- 5. Work with District administrators in enforcing the Code of Conduct and ensuring that all cases are resolved promptly and fairly.

F. Board of Education

1. Collaborate with student, teacher, administrator, and parent organizations, school safety personnel, and other school personnel, to develop a Code of Conduct that clearly defines expectations for the conduct of students, District personnel, and visitors on school property and at school functions.

5300 Subsection 5300.15

- 2. Adopt and review, at least annually, the District's code of conduct to evaluate the code's effectiveness and the fairness and consistency of its implementation.
- 3. Lead by example by conducting Board meetings in a professional, respectful, and courteous manner.
- 4. Report in writing to the Building Principal any knowledge of child abuse.

STUDENT DRESS CODE

The responsibility for student dress and general appearance shall rest with individual students and parents. However, the Board of Education requires students to attend school in appropriate dress and jewelry that meet health and safety standards and do not interfere or distract from the learning process. The Board also requires students to wear appropriate protective gear in certain classes and activities (i.e. family and consumer sciences, art, physical education, athletics, technology, science lab.) Hats, clothing, jewelry, and other attire which display an expression or insignia that is obscene or libelous, that advocates prejudice or violence, that promotes the use of or advertises drugs or alcohol, or that is gang related are forbidden.

All students are expected to give proper attention to personal cleanliness and to dress appropriately for school and school functions. Students and their parents have the primary responsibility for acceptable student dress and appearance. Teachers and all other District personnel should exemplify and reinforce acceptable student dress and help students develop an understanding of appropriate appearance in the school setting.

A student's dress, grooming and appearance, including hair style/color, jewelry, make-up, and nails, and accessories including backpacks, knapsacks, and computer devices, shall:

- 1. Be safe, appropriate, and not disrupt or interfere with the educational process.
- 2. Recognize that extremely revealing or excessively form fitting garments, such as, but not limited to, tube tops, net tops, halter tops, plunging necklines (front, back, and/or side,) and see-through garments are not appropriate.
- 3. Ensure that undergarments are completely covered with outer clothing.
- 4. Include footwear at all times. Footwear that is a safety hazard will not be allowed.
- 5. Not include the wearing of hats, caps, sunglasses, bandanas, hoods, and other headgear in the school/classroom except for medical, religious, or educational reasons.
- 6. Not include items, including, but not limited to, stickers, pennants, or patches, that are vulgar, obscene, libelous, or denigrate others on account of political beliefs or opinions, race, color, religion, creed, national origin, gender, sexual orientation, or disability.
- 7. Not promote and/or endorse the use of alcohol, tobacco, or illegal drugs, and/or encourage other illegal or violent activities.

Each Building Principal or his/her designee shall be responsible for informing all students and their parents of the student dress code at the beginning of the school year and any revisions to the dress code made during the school year.

Students who violate the student dress code shall be required to modify their appearance by covering or removing the offending item, and if necessary or practical, discipline, up to and including in-school suspension for the day. Any student who repeatedly fails to comply with the dress code shall be subject to further discipline, up to and including out of school suspension.

INTERNET/NETWORK USE

The Board of Education of the Three Village Central School District desires to have students and staff use modern technology to meet the information needs of their work and assignments. As a result, the District will provide students and staff with access to the Internet/network. Access to the Internet/network will enable students and staff to explore thousands of libraries and databases. Internet/network access from school computers and through district network is reserved solely for educational purposes. The District reserves the right to monitor all Internet/network access in order to maintain educational goals.

The Three Village Central School District will provide guidance to students as they utilize Internet/network resources to conduct research and other studies related to the District curriculum. No student or staff member may alter, or attempt to alter, the configuration of the District network, workstations, or Internet access. Because the Internet is a global network, it is impossible to control all materials accessed through the Internet/network or transmitted by users.

However, the District shall take precautions to control access to materials which:

- 1. Promote violence or advocate destruction of property including, but not limited to, access to information concerning the manufacture of destructive devices such as explosives, fireworks, smoke bombs, incendiary devices or the like.
- 2. Promote pornography or other sexually oriented material.
- 3. Advocate or promote violence or hatred against particular individuals or groups of individuals or advocate or promote the superiority of one racial, ethnic, or religious group over another.
- 4. Advocate and promote violence, or drug or alcohol use.
- 5. Promote or advocate cyber bullying.

The Superintendent of Schools, working with the Director of Instructional Technology, shall establish regulations governing the use and security of the District's computer network. All users of the District's computer network and equipment shall comply with this policy and those regulations. Failure to comply may result in disciplinary action and/or revocation of computer access privileges.

Users have no expectation of privacy for any materials created, copied, downloaded, or accessed by the user on the workstation, including hard copies of such materials.

Inappropriate use of the Internet/Network System, including email, is prohibited and is subject to discipline, including written reprimand and cessation of access privileges. (Ref.: Policy 4526 Internet/Network Use)

PROHIBITED STUDENT CONDUCT

The Board of Education expects all students to conduct themselves in an appropriate and civil manner, with proper regard for the rights and welfare of other students, District personnel, and other members of the school community, and for the care of school facilities and equipment.

The best discipline is self-imposed, and students must learn to assume and accept responsibility for their own behavior, as well as the consequences of their misbehavior. District personnel who interact with students are expected to use disciplinary action only when necessary and to place emphasis on the students' ability to grow in self-discipline.

The Board recognizes the need to be clear and specific in expressing its expectations for student conduct while on school property or engaged in a school function. The rules of conduct listed below are intended to do that and focus on safety and respect for the rights and property of others. Students who will not accept responsibility for their own behavior and who violate these school rules, will be required to accept the penalties for their conduct.

Students may be subject to disciplinary action, up to and including suspension from school, when they take any of the following actions on school grounds, at a school event, or off school grounds if such action disrupts the educational process in the schools. Students shall not engage in the following:

A. Conduct that is disorderly.

Examples of disorderly conduct include, but shall not be limited to:

- 1. Running in hallways.
- 2. Making unreasonable noise.
- 3. Using language or gestures that are profane, lewd, vulgar, or abusive.
- 4. Obstructing vehicular or pedestrian traffic, including illegal parking on school property.
- 5. Engaging in any willful act which disrupts the normal operation of the school community.
- 6. Trespassing. Students are not permitted in any school building or on school property, other than the one they regularly attend, without permission from the administrator in charge of the building.
- 7. Misusing computer/electronic communications devices, including any unauthorized use of computers, software, or Internet/Intranet account; accessing inappropriate websites; or any other violation of Section §5300.21.
- 7.8. Displaying any item, including stickers, pennants, or patches on ones' person, clothing and/or accessories including, but not limited to a backpack, knapsack, or computer devices that are vulgar, offensive, or denigrate others.

- 8.9. The use of smart devices, cell phones, and other unauthorized electronic devices (i.e. recording devices, cell phones, smart phones, ear buds, smart glasses, and cameras) are not permitted during class time and during any testing, unless specifically directed by teachers. The use of recording devices, of any kind, is not permitted on school property and District transportation without the permission of the Building Principal/designee.
- 9.10. No skateboarding/skating in school or on school property unless part of a physical education class.
- B. Consequences of Unauthorized Smart Device or Cell Phone Use in Classroom Environment
 - 1. First Offense: If a student is caught using a smart device, cell phone, or wearing earbuds without teacher/staff authorization after being directed by the teacher/staff member to remove the earbuds and/or put the smart device away, an automatic principal's two day in school suspension will be applied.
 - 2. Second Offense: If a student is caught using a smart device, cell phone, or wearing earbuds without teacher/staff authorization after being directed by the teacher/staff member to remove the earbuds and/or put the smart device away, an automatic principal's three day out of school suspension will be applied.
 - 3. Third and Subsequent Offense: If a student is caught using a smart device, cell phone, or wearing earbuds without teacher/staff authorization an automatic principal's five-day out of school suspension will be applied, as well as an automatic referral to a Superintendent's Hearing will be applied for possible additional consequences.

C. Conduct that is insubordinate.

Examples of insubordinate conduct include, but shall not be limited to:

- 1. Failing to comply with the reasonable directions of teachers, school administrators, or other school employees in charge of students, or otherwise demonstrating disrespect.
- 2. Unexcused lateness or cutting classes, truancy, missing, or leaving school without permission.
- 3. Failure to report to assigned detention or in-school suspension.

D. Conduct that is disruptive.

Examples of disruptive conduct include, but shall not be limited to:

- 1. Failing to comply with the directions or requests of teachers, school administrators, or other school personnel in charge of students.
- 2. Verbal, written, or graphic statements, communications, expressions, or illustrations that are threatening to person or property.

E. Conduct that is violent and/or rises to the level of assault as defined herein.

Examples of violent conduct include, but shall not be limited to:

5300 Subsection 5300.25

- 1. Committing an act of violence (such as hitting, kicking, spitting, biting, punching, scratching or throwing of objects) upon a teacher, administrator, or other school employee, or attempting to do so.
- 2. Committing an act of violence including assault (such as hitting, kicking, spitting, biting, punching, scratching or throwing of objects) upon another student or any other person lawfully on school property, or attempting to do so.
- 3. Possessing a weapon. Authorized law enforcement officials are the only persons permitted to have a weapon in their possession while on school property or at a school function.
- 4. Displaying what appears to be a weapon.
- 5. Threatening to use any weapon.
- 6. Using a weapon.
- 7. Threatening to, or intentionally, damaging or destroying the personal property of a student, teacher, administrator, other district employee or any person lawfully on school property, including graffiti or arson.
- 8. Threatening to, or intentionally damaging or destroying school district property, including graffiti or arson.
- 9. Threatening to or intentionally using food to cause physical, psychological, and/or emotional injury.

F. Conduct that endangers the safety, morals, health, or welfare of others.

Examples of such conduct include, but shall not be limited to:

- 1. Lying to school personnel.
- 2. Stealing district property, the property of other students, school personnel, or any other person lawfully on school property or attending a school function.
- 3. Using or displaying vulgar or abusive language, cursing or swearing.
- 4. Defamation, which includes making false statements or representations about an individual or identifiable group of individuals that harm the reputation of the person or the identifiable group by demeaning them.
- 5. Harassment, bullying, threats, or intimidation directed at an identifiable individual or group which are intended to be, or which a reasonable person would perceive as ridiculing, demeaning, or threatening. [Ref: Policy 0115]
- 6. Intimidation, threats, or bullying, including engaging in actions or statements that put an individual in fear of bodily harm and/or emotional discomfort. [Ref: Policy 0115]
- 7. Discrimination and harassment against any student by employees or students, on school property or at a school function that creates a hostile environment by conduct which, with or without physical contact, and/or by verbal threats, intimidation or abuse, is of so severe a nature that it:
 - a) has or would have the effect of unreasonably and substantially interfering with a student's educational performance, opportunities or benefits, or mental, emotional and/or physical well-being; or

- b) reasonably causes, or would reasonably be expected to cause, a student to fear for his or her physical safety. Prohibited conduct includes, but is not limited to, threats, intimidation or abuse based on a person's actual or perceived race, color, weight, national origin, ethnic group, religion, religious practices, disability, sexual orientation, gender or sex.
- 8. Cyber bullying that causes a disruption to the educational environment.
- 9. Any form of electronic messaging that causes disruption to the educational environment (e.g. sexting, tweeting, instant messaging, displaying or sharing lewd photographs).
- 10. Hazing, which includes any intentional or reckless act directed against another for the purpose of initiation into, affiliating with or maintaining membership in any school sponsored activity, organization, club, or team. Hazing related to any non-school related activity is also forbidden. [Ref: Policy 0115]
- 11. Harassment, including overt or subtle behaviors and comments of a racial, religious, and ethnic nature that are offensive, unwelcome, interfere with another's work or academic performance, or create an intimidating, hostile, or offensive working or educational environment. [Ref: Policy 0115] Please refer to Section H: Consequences of Racial/Religious/Ethnic comments/behaviors.
- 12. Inappropriate touching and/or indecent exposure, that is, exposure to sight of the private parts of the body in a lewd or indecent manner. [Ref: Policy 0115]
- 13. Sexual harassment, including overt or subtle behaviors and comments that are offensive, unwelcome, interfere with another's work or academic performance, or create an intimidating, hostile, or offensive working or educational environment. [Ref: Policy 0115]
- 14. Selling, using or possessing obscene material. [Ref: Policy 0110]
- 15. Smoking a cigarette, cigar, pipe, e-cigarette, or using chewing or smokeless tobacco, a vaporizer, e-cigarettes, or liquid nicotine. [Ref: Policy 5312.1 Drug and Alcohol Abuse]
- 16. Possessing, consuming, selling, distributing, or exchanging tobacco products, e-cigarettes, vaporizers, vapes, liquid nicotine, alcoholic beverages or legal or illegal substances, or being under the influence of either or being in possession of drug paraphernalia. Inappropriately using or sharing prescription and over-the-counter drugs. "Illegal substances" shall include, but are not limited to inhalants, marijuana, cocaine, LSD, PCP, amphetamines, heroin, steroids, look-alike drugs, and any substance commonly referred to as "designer drugs" or synthetic drugs, such as synthetic cannabinoids. [Ref: Policy 5312.1]
- 17. Possessing aerosol sprays (deodorants, body sprays, AXE) on school property. Aerosol sprays may pose a serious health risk to our students and staff. Spraying aerosols on campus is not permitted. Aerosol containers will be confiscated.
- 18. Consuming, buying, or selling energy drinks on school property. Energy drinks shall mean a beverage that is not strictly regulated by the Food and Drug Administration and that contains 75 or more milligrams of caffeine per 8 fluid ounces and generally includes a combination of other supplements such as methylxanthines, B vitamins, herbal ingredients, and other ingredients, which are advertised as being specifically designed to provide or increase energy.

- 19. Gambling
- 20. Initiating a report warning of fire, bomb, or other catastrophe without valid cause, misuse of 911, or discharging a fire extinguisher.
- 21. Using food, medication, drugs, or substances to bully and/or cause fear, intimidation or actual bodily harm.
- 22. The use of drones on school property, except under the direct supervision of staff, is strictly prohibited.

G. Consequences of Vaping

- 1. First Offense: If a student is caught vaping or in the possession of a vaping device (electronic cigarettes and other devices such as Juuls, vape pens, e-hookahs, atomizers and any other instrument used to deliver chemical substances to be inhaled or otherwise absorbed into the body), or vaping material, an automatic principal's five-day out of school suspension will be applied.
 - a. Should the student also be in possession of an illegal substance the consequences shall also include a referral for a Superintendent's Hearing.
- 2. Second or Subsequent Offense: If a student is caught vaping or in possession of a vaping device (electronic cigarettes and other devices such as Juuls, vape pens, e-hookahs, atomizers and any other instrument used to deliver chemical substances to be inhaled or otherwise absorbed into the body), or vaping material, for a second or subsequent time, an automatic principal's five-day out of school suspension will be applied, as well as an automatic referral to a Superintendent's Hearing will be applied for additional consequences.

H. Consequences of Racial/Religious, Ethnic Comments and/or Behaviors

- 1. First Offense: If a student engages in overt behaviors and/or makes comments of a racial, religious, and/or ethnic nature that have been substantiated by administration and found to be offensive, and interfere with another's work or academic performance, or create an intimidating, hostile, or offensive working or educational environment, an automatic principal's five-day out of school suspension will be applied.
- 2. Second Offense or Subsequent Offense(s): If a student engages in overt behaviors and/or makes comments of a racial, religious, and/or ethnic nature that have been substantiated by administration and found to be offensive, and interfere with another's work, intimidating, hostile, or offensive working or educational environment, an automatic principal's five-day out of school suspension will be applied, as well as an automatic referral to a Superintendent's Hearing will be applied for additional consequences.

2.3. Notwithstanding whether an offense is a student's first or second offense, Building Principals may take into consideration a student's age as well as developmental and cognitive abilities and understanding when determining an appropriate consequence.

5300 Subsection 5300.25

I. Engage in misconduct while on a school bus.

It is crucial for students to behave appropriately while riding on District buses, to ensure their safety and that of other passengers and to avoid distracting the bus driver. Students are required to conduct themselves on the bus in a manner consistent with established

standards for classroom behavior. Unsafe behaviors such as but not limited to excessive noise, use of expletives, throwing items out of the window, vandalism, bullying, pushing, shoving, jumping, standing, and fighting will not be tolerated.

J. Engage in any form of academic misconduct.

Examples of misconduct include, but shall not be limited to:

- 1. Plagiarism.
- 2. Cheating.
- 3. Copying.
- 4. Altering records.
- 5. Assisting another student in any of the above actions.

I. Code of Academic Integrity

The core purpose of public education is to maximize the success of each student's learning and personal development so s/he becomes a successful part of our democratic, multi-ethnic society. To fulfill these expectations, students must be prepared to accept responsibility for their actions and the impact they may have on others. To promote these values, the foregoing Academic Code of Conduct has been established.

Academic Dishonesty

The following constitute examples of academic dishonesty. This list is not meant to be all-inclusive:

- 1. Copying: Obtaining information pertaining to any work to be submitted for evaluation by deliberately observing the work of another.
- 2. Plagiarism: Representing the work(s) or idea(s) of another, not necessarily those of a student, as one's own through the deliberate omission of acknowledgement or reference.
- 3. Cribbing: The use or attempted use of prohibited material, information, or study aids in any work submitted for evaluation.

- 4. Fraud: The alteration of any documentation relating to the grading process including tampering with an instructor's grade book (including electronic gradebook).
- 5. Fabrication: The unauthorized falsification or invention of any information in a work submitted for evaluation, including the use of a purchased term/research paper.
- 6. Sabotage: The intentional or reckless destruction of another student's work to be submitted for evaluation.
- 7. Complicity: The intentional performance of an act with knowledge that it will assist another to commit an act of academic dishonesty as that term is defined in the Code.

Subsection 5300.25

13.8. Facilitation: Assisting someone in committing plagiarism, fabrication, cheating, or any other type of academic dishonesty.

Teachers, administrators and any other member of the District staff shall promptly report any suspected violations of this Code to the Superintendent or his/her designee.

Consequences of Academic Dishonesty

Any alleged act of academic dishonesty by a student, as defined above, shall be evaluated on a case-by-case basis by the Building Principal or his/her designee.

The Building Principal, or his/her designee, may take any or all of the following disciplinary actions when a student is found to have engaged in academic misconduct:

- 1. Parental notification
- 2. Oral reprimand
- 3. Written reprimand
- 4. No public recognition of academic honors
- 5. Ineligibility for/or removal from District sponsored honor societies
- 6. Withdrawal of District sponsored scholarship
- 7. The student shall receive a "zero" on the assignment or test
- 8. The student may receive a grade of 55 in the course and be dismissed from the course for the remainder of the semester/year with no credit

In addition to the above sanctions, any student removed from a course with a grade of 55, or any student that engages in academic misconduct, may not be eligible to receive any Three Village Central School District sponsored award, recognition, or hold any student leadership position.

Disciplinary sanctions beyond those listed here, including detention, in-school suspension and out-of-school suspension, may be issued by the Building Principal in addition to the academic sanctions listed above.

Any student believed to have engaged in academic misconduct shall have the right to an informal conference with the Building Principal to present his/her version of the events prior to the imposition of the above-listed sanctions.

WEAPONS

With the exception of Police Officers and New York State Peace Officers on official agency business, no person shall have a weapon in their possession while on district property, or when participating in district activities regardless of location, or in a place or vehicle under district jurisdiction.

With the exception of Police Officers and New York State Peace Officers on official agency business, any person with a concealed weapon must notify the building security officer and/or the building principal that they are carrying a concealed weapon.

A weapon is defined as:

- 1. A firearm, as defined in §921 of Title 18, United States Code, for purposes of the Gun-Free Schools Act.
- 2. A corrosive substance.
- 3. A device or substance capable (through its design or alteration) of inflicting physical harm, including but not limited to ammunition, knives, guns, "stun" guns, pellet guns, bb guns, laser pointers, pyrotechnics, explosives or incendiary bombs, or dangerous chemicals.
- 4. Any device made to resemble a weapon of any kind.

A student who brings a weapon to school shall be promptly referred to the appropriate criminal justice or juvenile delinquency authorities.

Except as otherwise provided by law or this policy, a student found guilty of bringing a weapon onto school property, following a hearing pursuant to Section §3214 of the Education Law, shall be suspended from school for one year. The Superintendent of Schools shall review the circumstances surrounding the offense and, on a case-by-case basis, may modify the penalty.

An exception to the prohibition in the first paragraph may be made by prior written permission of the principal in instances where a weapon is to be part of a dramatic or music performance or is to be used as an artifact in an instructional unit. As a prerequisite to such permission, all such weapons shall be rendered inoperative to the extent necessary to avoid and avert possible accidents or injury due to any use, handling, or misconduct, whether intentional or otherwise.

This policy shall not preclude the use of certain corrosive materials or sharp instruments by staff or medical personnel in the course of duty, shall not limit the rights of students classified disabled under the Individuals with Disabilities Act or Article 89 of the New York State Education Law, and shall not preclude the District from offering courses for instruction in the safe use of firearms.

GANG-RELATED ACTIVITY AND AFFILIATION

By identifying the presence of gangs and/or gang affiliation in a school, administrators, educators, counselors and security personnel can take steps to prevent the proliferation of activity and mitigate the threat of violence in our schools.

Students and school personnel are prohibited from engaging in the following:

- 1. Wearing any combination of clothing and/or items which law enforcement agencies currently consider gang-related and/or promoting gang activity and affiliations as identified in the "Gang Identification Manual" attached hereto;
- 2. Displaying signs of gang affiliation or membership in gangs or organizations which law enforcement agencies currently identify as promoting violence or violent activities;
- 3. Displaying or engaging in gang-related behaviors that are observed to increase the level of conflict or violent behavior:
- 4. Recruiting and/or threatening and/or initiating student and/or school personnel into gang membership or gang related activities;
- 5. Gang membership or engaging in gang related activity as identified in the "Gang Identification Manual" attached hereto:
- 6. Promoting and/or endorsing illegal or violent activities, including those acts in furtherance of gang purposes.

Students and school personnel may be subject to disciplinary action, in accordance with the District's Policy and Code of Conduct, when they take any of the foregoing actions on school property, at a school event, or off school grounds if such action disrupts the educational process in the schools.

REPORTING VIOLATIONS

All students are expected to promptly report violations of the Code of Conduct to a staff member, guidance counselor, the Building Principal or his or her designee. Any student observing a student possessing a weapon, alcohol or illegal substance on school property or at a school function shall report this information immediately to a staff member, the Building Principal, the Building Principal's designee, or the Superintendent of Schools.

All district staff who are authorized to impose disciplinary sanctions are expected to do so in a prompt, fair and lawful manner. District staff who are not authorized to impose disciplinary sanctions are expected to promptly report violations of the Code of Conduct to their supervisor, who shall in turn impose an appropriate disciplinary sanction, if so authorized, or refer the matter to a staff member who is authorized to impose an appropriate sanction.

In the event of an implied or direct threat of violence, including suicide, by a student against him/herself, the child's parent or guardian or person in parental relation will be contacted.

Any weapon, alcohol or illegal substance found shall be confiscated immediately, if possible, followed by notification to the parent of the student involved and the appropriate disciplinary sanction, which may include permanent suspension and referral for prosecution.

Each Building Principal, or his/her designee, must notify the appropriate law enforcement agency of Code violations that constitute, or reason to believe to constitute a crime, and substantially affect the order or security of the school, as soon as practicable. These reports will be submitted to the Superintendent/designee and filed with the New York State Education Department annually. The notification shall be made by telephone to 911, followed by a written police report.

School employees who witness harassment, bullying, and/or discrimination or receive an oral or written report of such acts, should verbally notify the principal, superintendent, or their designee, no later than one (1) school day after receiving a report of such acts, and file a written report with the principal, superintendent, or their designee no later than two (2) school days after making such verbal report. The Board of Education has appointed Dignity Act Coordinators for each school building in the District.

The Dignity Act Coordinator(s) are as follows:

School	Contact	Phone Number
Ward Melville HS	Principal – William Bernhard	730-4900
380 Old Town Road	Social Worker – Dianna Gott	730-4915
East Setauket, NY 11733		730-4917

School	Contact	Phone Number
The Three Village Academy	Principal – Gustave Hueber	730-5052
100 Suffolk Avenue Stony Brook, NY 11790	Psychologist – Jose Salazar	730-5055
P.J. Gelinas JHS	Principal – Corinne Keane Social Worker – Pamela Roberts	730-4700
25 Mud Road		730-4745
Setauket, NY 11733		
R.C. Murphy JHS	Principal – Brian Biscari	730-4800
351 Oxhead Road Stony Brook, NY 11790	Social Worker – Michelle Virga	730-4848
Arrowhead Elementary 62 Arrowhead Lane East Setauket, NY 11733	Principal – Marisa Redden	730-4100
	Social Worker – Judy Forgione	730-4134
Minnesauke Elementary	Principal – Nancy Pickford	730-4200
21 Highgate Drive East Setauket, NY 11733	Social Worker – Leia Woodruff	730-4223
W.S. Mount Elementary	Principal – Rosanne Di Bella	730-4300
50 Dean Lane	Social Worker – Tinamarie Rickmers	730-4326
Stony Brook, NY 11790		
Nassakeag Elementary	Principal – Heather Levine	730-4400
490 Pond Path	Social Worker – Kristine Sheiffele	730-4428
East Setauket, NY 11733		
Setauket Elementary 134 Main Street Setauket, NY 11733	Principal – Karen Mizell Social Worker – Sherrill Lennon	730-4600 730-4630

DISCIPLINARY CONSEQUENCES, PROCEDURES, AND REFERRALS

Discipline is most effective when it deals directly with the problem at the time and place it occurs, and in a way that students view as fair and impartial. School personnel who interact with students are expected to use disciplinary action only when necessary and to place emphasis on the students' ability to grow in self-discipline.

Disciplinary action, when necessary, will be firm, fair, and consistent so as to be the most effective in changing student behavior. In determining the appropriate disciplinary action, school personnel authorized to impose disciplinary penalties will consider the following:

- 1. The student's age, developmental and cognitive abilities and understanding.
- 2. The nature of the offense and the circumstances which led to the offense.
- 3. The student's prior disciplinary record.
- 4. The effectiveness of other forms of discipline.
- 5. Information from parents, teachers, and/or others, as appropriate.
- 6. Other extenuating circumstances.

As a general rule, discipline will be progressive. This means that a student's first violation will usually merit a lighter penalty than subsequent violations.

If the conduct of a student is related to a disability or suspected disability, the student shall be referred to the Committee on Special Education and discipline, if warranted, shall be administered consistent with the separate requirements of this Code of Conduct for disciplining students with a disability or presumed to have a disability. A student identified as having a disability shall not be disciplined for behavior related to his/her disability.

A. Disciplinary Consequences

Students learn socially appropriate behavior by being allowed to experience both positive and negative consequences for their actions. In addressing student behaviors that may impede abilities, the District uses a variety of:

- 1. Positive supports, strategies, and interventions to improve students' motivation, social skills, problem solving abilities, anger management, and conflict resolution abilities.
- 2. Environmental modifications to support students' abilities to maintain attention, stay on task, and control their behavior.
- 3. Individual behavior management plans to improve students' abilities to understand the connections between their behavior and desired outcomes.

As a general practice, and whenever possible, these interventions are used in combination prior to imposing more severe disciplinary consequences.

Students who are found to have violated the District's Code of Conduct may be subject to the following, non-exclusive, consequences, either alone or in combination, based on the severity of the infraction. Authorized school personnel may impose such consequences, consistent with the students' right to due process and applicable state law or regulation:

- 1. Oral warning
- 2. Written warning
- 3. Oral communication to parent
- 4. Written notification to parent
- 5. Detention
- 6. Suspension from transportation
- 7. Suspension from athletic participation
- 8. Suspension from social or extracurricular activities
- 9. Suspension of other privileges
- 10. In-school suspension
- 11. Mediation
- 12. Assignment of aide for safety/security purposes
- 13. Backpack checks as needed
- 14. Removal from classroom by teacher
- 15. Short-term (five days or less) suspension from school
- 16. Long-term (more than five days) suspension from school
- 17. Permanent suspension from school
- 18. Restitution
- 19. Police referral
- 20. Alternative placement
- 21. Restorative Practice: Restorative Practices is an alternative to traditional forms of discipline. The restorative practices seek to promote social-emotional growth, foster understanding and support positive behaviors in school. It involves practices designed to empower students to build community, resolve conflicts, repair harm and restore relationships both on their own and in small groups. Restorative Practices encourage collaboration and reintegration rather than coercion and isolation. Communication between teachers, students and parents look to bring attention to the unintended consequences of our actions, showing respect to all parties including victims and offenders.

B. Procedures

The amount of due process a student is entitled to receive before a consequence is imposed depends on the nature of the incident. In all cases, regardless of the consequence imposed, the authorized school personnel must inform the student of the alleged misconduct and must investigate, to the extent necessary, the facts surrounding the alleged misconduct. Prior to imposing the disciplinary consequence, the authorized school personnel shall provide the student with an opportunity to present his or her version of the facts.

Students who are to be given consequences other than an oral warning, written warning or written notification to their parents are entitled to additional rights before the penalty is imposed. These additional rights are explained below:

•

1. Detention

Teachers, Principals, and the Superintendent may use detention as a consequence for student misconduct in situations where removal from the classroom or suspension would be inappropriate. Teachers and administrators shall have the authority to detain students from participating in such activities as recess, play activities, field trips, and after-school activities and co-curricular events. Detention will be imposed as a consequence only after the student's parent has been notified to confirm that there is no parental objection to the penalty and, if necessary, the student has appropriate transportation home following detention. Detention may be assigned before, during, or after the school day.

2. Suspension from transportation

If a student does not conduct himself/herself properly on a bus, the school bus personnel are expected to bring such misconduct to the Principal's or his/her designee's attention. Students who become a serious disciplinary problem may have their riding privileges suspended by the Principal or the Superintendent or their designees. In such cases, the student's parent will become responsible for seeing that his or her child gets to and from school safely. Should the suspension from transportation amount to a suspension from attendance, the District will make appropriate arrangements to provide for the student's education.

A student subjected to a suspension from transportation is not entitled to a full hearing pursuant to Education Law §3214. However, the student and the student's parent will be provided with a reasonable opportunity for an informal conference with the Principal or the Principal's designee to discuss the conduct and the penalty involved.

3. Suspension from athletic participation, extra-curricular activities and other privileges

A student subjected to a suspension from athletic participation, extra-curricular activities or other privileges is not entitled to a full hearing pursuant to Education Law §3214. However, the student and the student's parent will be provided with a reasonable opportunity for an informal conference with the District official imposing the suspension to discuss the conduct and the penalty involved.

4. In-school Suspension/Support

The Board of Education recognizes the importance of school attendance. Therefore, suspension from school must be viewed as a last resort in dealing with student disciplinary infractions. The Board also recognizes the need to remove unruly or disruptive students from the regular class so that learning can take place in the classrooms.

In-school suspension/support shall be used as an alternative to suspension from school in order to provide more meaningful discipline and continuity of instruction. As such, the Board authorizes Principals, their designees and the Superintendent to place students who would otherwise be suspended from school as the result of a Code of Conduct violation in "in-school suspension/support." The in-school suspension/support staff will have New York State teaching certification.

A student subjected to in-school suspension/support is not entitled to a full hearing pursuant to Education Law §3214. However, the student and the student's parent will be provided with a reasonable opportunity for an informal conference with the District official imposing the in-school suspension/support to discuss the conduct and the consequence involved.

5. Formal Removal of Disruptive Students by a Teacher

A student's behavior can affect a teacher's ability to teach and can make it difficult for other students in the classroom to learn. In most instances the classroom teacher can control a student's behavior and maintain or restore control over the classroom by using good classroom management techniques. These techniques may include practices that involve the teacher directing a student to briefly leave the classroom to give the student an opportunity to regain his or her composure and self-control in an alternative setting. Such practices may include, but are not limited to:

- 1. Short-term "time-out" in an elementary classroom or in an administrator's office
- 2. Sending a student to the Principal's office for the remainder of the class time only
- 3. Sending a student to a guidance counselor or other district staff member for counseling

Classroom management techniques such as these do not constitute disciplinary removals for purposes of this Code.

On occasion, a student's behavior may become disruptive. For purposes of this Code of Conduct, a disruptive student is a student who is substantially disruptive of the educational process or substantially interferes with the teacher's authority over the classroom. A substantial disruption of the educational process or substantial interference with a teacher's authority occurs when a student demonstrates a persistent unwillingness to comply with the teacher's instructions or repeatedly violates the teacher's classroom behavior rules.

A classroom teacher may remove a disruptive student from class for up to two days. The removal from class applies to the class of the removing teacher only.

1. If the disruptive student does not pose a danger or ongoing threat of disruption to the academic process, the teacher must provide the student with an explanation for why he or she is being removed and an opportunity to explain his or her version of the relevant events before the student is removed. Only after the informal discussion may a teacher remove a student from class.

- 2. If the student poses a danger or ongoing threat of disruption, the teacher may order the student to be removed immediately. The teacher must, however, explain to the student why he or she was removed from the classroom and give the student a chance to present his or her version of the relevant events within 24 hours.
- 3. The teacher must complete a District-established disciplinary removal form and meet with the Principal or his or her designee as soon as possible, but no later than the end of the school day, to explain the circumstances of the removal and to present the removal form. If the Principal or his/her designee is not available by the end of the same school day, the teacher must leave the form with another administrative designee and meet with the Principal or designee prior to the beginning of classes on the next school day.
 - d. Within 24 hours after the student's removal by a teacher, the Principal or his/her designee must notify the student's parent, in writing, that the student has been removed from class and why. The notice must also inform the parent that he or she has the right, upon request, to meet informally with the Principal or the Principal's designee to discuss the reasons for the removal. The parent has no right to legal representation.
 - e. The written notice must be provided by personal delivery, express mail delivery, or some other means that is reasonably calculated to ensure receipt of the notice within 24 hours of the student's removal at the last known address for the parent. Where possible, notice should also be provided by telephone if the school has been provided with a telephone number(s) for the purpose of contacting parents.
 - f. The Principal may require the teacher who ordered the removal to attend the informal conference if held during the teacher's normal workday.
 - g. If at the informal meeting the student denies the charges, the Principal or his/her designee must explain why the student was removed and give the student and the student's parents a chance to present the student's version of the relevant events. The informal meeting must be held within 48 hours of the student's removal. The timing of the informal meeting may be extended by mutual agreement of the parent and Principal.
 - h. The Principal or his/her designee may overturn the removal of the student from class if the Principal finds any one of the following:

- 1) The charges against the student are not supported by substantial evidence.
- 2) The student's removal is otherwise in violation of law, including the District's Code of Conduct.
- 3) The conduct warrants suspension from school pursuant to Education Law §3214 and a suspension will be imposed.
- i. The Principal or his/her designee may overturn a removal at any point between receiving the referral form issued by the teacher and the close of business on the day following the 48 hour period for the informal conference, if a conference is requested. No student removed from the classroom by the classroom teacher will be permitted to return to the classroom until the Principal makes a final determination, or the period of removal expires, whichever is less.
- j. Any disruptive student removed from the classroom by the classroom teacher shall be offered continued educational programming and activities until he or she is permitted to return to the classroom.
- k. The Principal or his/her designee will keep a complete log (on a district-provided form) for all cases of removal of students from classes.
- Removal of a student with a disability, under certain circumstances, may constitute a change
 in the student's placement. Accordingly, no teacher may remove a student with a disability
 from his or her class until he or she has verified with the Principal or the chairperson of the
 Committee on Special Education that the removal will not violate the student's rights under
 state or federal law or regulation.

6. Suspension from School

Suspension from school is a severe penalty, which may be imposed only upon students who are insubordinate, disorderly, violent or disruptive, or whose conduct otherwise endangers the safety, morals, health, or welfare of others.

The Board retains its authority to suspend students, but places primary responsibility for the suspension of students with the Superintendent and the Principals.

Any staff member may recommend to the Superintendent or the Principal that a student be suspended. All staff members must immediately report and refer a violent student to the Principal or the Superintendent for a violation of the Code of Conduct. All recommendations and referrals shall be made in writing unless the conditions underlying the recommendation or referral warrant immediate attention. In such cases, a written report is to be prepared as soon as possible by the staff member recommending the suspension.

The Superintendent or Principal, upon receiving a recommendation or referral for suspension, or when processing a case for suspension, shall gather the facts relevant to the matter and record them for subsequent presentation, if necessary.

a. Short-term (five days or less) suspension from school.

When the Superintendent or Principal (referred to as the "suspending authority") proposes to suspend a student charged with misconduct for five days or less pursuant to Education Law §3214(3), the suspending authority must immediately notify the student orally. If the student denies the misconduct, the suspending authority must provide an explanation of the basis for the proposed suspension. The suspending authority must also notify the student's parents in writing that the student may be suspended from school. The written notice must be provided by personal delivery, express mail delivery, or some other means that is reasonably calculated to ensure receipt of the notice within 24 hours of the decision to propose suspension at the last known address for the parents. Where possible, notice should also be provided by telephone if the school has been provided with a telephone number(s) for the purpose of contacting the parents.

The notice shall provide a description of the charges against the student and the incident for which suspension is proposed and shall inform the parents of the right to request an immediate informal conference with the Principal. Both the notice and the informal conference shall be in the dominant language or mode of communication used by the parents. At the conference, the parents shall be permitted to ask questions of complaining witnesses under such procedures as the Principal may establish. Parents have no right to legal representation at this informal conference.

The notice and opportunity for an informal conference shall take place before the student is suspended unless the student's presence in school poses a continuing danger to persons or property or an ongoing threat of disruption to the academic process. If the student's presence does pose such a danger or threat of disruption, the notice and opportunity for an informal conference shall take place as soon after the suspension as is reasonably practicable.

After the conference, the Principal shall promptly advise the parents in writing of his or her decision. The Principal shall advise the parents that if they are not satisfied with the decision and wish to pursue the matter, they must file a written appeal to the Superintendent within thirty (30) days. The Superintendent shall issue a written decision regarding the appeal within ten (10) business days of receiving the appeal. If the parents are not satisfied with the Superintendent's decision, they must file a written appeal to the Board of Education with the District Clerk within thirty (30) days of the date of the Superintendent's decision. Final decisions of the Board may be appealed to the Commissioner of Education within thirty (30) days of the decision of the Board.

b. Long-term (more than five days) suspension from school, permanent suspension, and removals or suspensions that constitute a disciplinary change of placement for students with disabilities (which could include an alternative special educational setting.)

When the Superintendent or Principal determines that a suspension for more than five days may be warranted, he or she shall give reasonable notice to the student and the student's parents of their right to a fair hearing. At the hearing the student shall have the right to be represented by counsel, the right to question witnesses against him or her, and the right to present witnesses and other evidence on his or her behalf.

The Superintendent shall personally hear and determine the proceeding or may, in his or her discretion, designate a hearing officer to conduct the hearing. The hearing officer shall be authorized to administer oaths and to issue subpoenas in conjunction with the proceeding before him or her. A record of the hearing shall be maintained, but no stenographic transcript shall be required. A tape recording shall be deemed a satisfactory record. The hearing officer shall make findings of fact and recommendations as to the appropriate measure of discipline to the Superintendent. The report of the hearing officer shall be advisory only, and the Superintendent may accept all or any part thereof.

An appeal of the decision of the Superintendent may be made to the Board that will make its decision based solely upon the record before it. All appeals to the Board must be in writing and submitted to the District Clerk within thirty (30) days of the date of the Superintendent's decision. The Board may adopt in whole or in part the decision of the Superintendent. Final decisions of the Board may be appealed to the Commissioner of Education within thirty (30) days of the decision of the Board.

C. Minimum Periods of Suspension

1. Students who bring a weapon to school

Any student, other than a student with a disability, found guilty of bringing an illegal weapon onto school property will be subject to suspension from school for at least one calendar year. Before being suspended, the student will have an opportunity for a hearing pursuant to Education Law §3214. The Superintendent has the authority to modify the one-year suspension on a case-by-case basis. In deciding whether to modify the penalty, the Superintendent may consider the following:

- a) The student's age.
- b) The student's grade in school.
- c) The student's prior disciplinary record.
- d) The Superintendent's belief that other forms of discipline may be more effective.
- e) Input from parents, teachers, and/or others.
- f) Other extenuating circumstances.

A student with a disability may be suspended only in accordance with the requirements of State and federal law.

2. Students who commit violent acts other than bringing an illegal weapon to school

Any student, other than a student with a disability, who is found to have committed a violent act, other than bringing a weapon onto school property, shall be subject to suspension from school for at least five days. If the proposed penalty is the minimum five-day suspension, the student and the student's parent will be given the same notice and opportunity for an informal conference given to all students subject to a short-term suspension. If the proposed penalty exceeds the minimum five-day suspension, the student and the student's parent will be given the same notice and opportunity for a hearing given to all students subject to a long-term suspension. The Superintendent has the authority to modify the minimum five-day suspension on a case-by-case basis. In deciding whether to modify the penalty, the Superintendent may consider the same factors considered in modifying a one-year suspension for possessing a weapon.

3. Students who are repeatedly substantially disruptive of the educational process or repeatedly substantially interfere with the teacher's authority over the classroom

Any student, other than a student with a disability, who repeatedly is substantially disruptive of the educational process or substantially interferes with the teacher's authority over the classroom will be suspended from school for at least five days. For purposes of this Code of Conduct, "repeatedly is substantially disruptive" means engaging in conduct that results in the student being removed from the classroom by teacher(s) pursuant to Education Law §3214 (3a) and this code on four or more occasions during a semester. If the proposed penalty if the minimum five-day suspension, the student and the student's parent will be given the same notice and opportunity for an informal conference given to all students subject to a short-term suspension. If the proposed penalty exceeds the minimum five-day suspension, the student and the student's parent will be given the same notice and opportunity for a hearing given to all students subject to a long-term suspension. The Superintendent has the authority to modify the minimum five-day suspension on a case-by-case basis. In deciding whether to modify the consequence, the Superintendent may consider the same factors considered in modifying a one-year suspension for possessing an illegal weapon.

D. Referrals

1. Counseling

The Guidance Office shall handle all referrals of students to counseling.

2. PINS Petitions

The District may file a PINS (person in need of supervision) petition in Family Court on any student under the age of 18 who demonstrates that he or she requires supervision and treatment by:

- a. Being habitually truant and not attending school as required by part one of Article 65 of the Education Law.
- b. Engaging in an ongoing or continual course of conduct which makes the student ungovernable, or habitually disobedient, and beyond the lawful control of the school.
- c. Knowingly and unlawfully possesses marijuana in violation of Penal Law §221.05. A single violation of §221.05 will be a sufficient basis for filing a PINS petition.

School authorities should work closely with the student's parents, to the extent possible, when filing a petition.

3. Juvenile Delinquents and Juvenile Offenders

The Superintendent is required to refer the following students to the County Attorney for a juvenile delinquency proceeding before the Family Court:

- a. Any student under the age of 16 who is found to have brought a weapon to school, or
- b. Any student 14 or 15 years old who qualifies for juvenile offender status under the Criminal Procedure Law §1.20 (42).

The Superintendent is required to refer students age 16 and older or any student 14 or 15 years old who qualifies for juvenile offender status to the appropriate law enforcement authorities.

CODE OF CONDUCT

ALTERNATIVE INSTRUCTION

When a student of any age is removed from class by a teacher, or when a student of compulsory attendance age is suspended from school, pursuant to Education Law §3214, the District will take immediate steps to provide alternative means of instruction for the student.

CODE OF CONDUCT

DISCIPLINE OF STUDENTS WITH DISABILITIES

The Board recognizes that it may be necessary to suspend, remove, or otherwise discipline students with disabilities to address disruptive or problem behavior. The Board also recognizes that students with disabilities are afforded certain procedural protections whenever school authorities intend to impose discipline upon them. The Board is committed to ensuring that the procedures followed for suspending, removing or otherwise disciplining students with disabilities are consistent with the procedural safeguards required by applicable laws and regulations.

This Code of Conduct affords students with disabilities subject to disciplinary action no greater or lesser rights than those expressly afforded by applicable federal and state law and regulations. A student with a disability is defined by law as: (1) any student that receives IDEA due process (has an IEP) as defined by 20 USC 1401(a)(1); (2) any student who has not yet been determined to be eligible for service by the District has knowledge before the occurrence of the behavior prompting the student's qualification under the Individuals with Disabilities Education Act (IDEA). Knowledge is defined as: (a) when a parent expresses concern in writing to district personnel, (b) behavior/performance demonstrates need for service, (c) student's parent has requested an evaluation, and (d) student's teacher and/or district personnel have expressed concern in writing about the student's behavior or performance.

A. Authorized Suspensions or Removals of Students with Disabilities

- 1. For purposes of this section of the Code of Conduct, the following definitions apply:
 - 1. A "suspension" means a suspension pursuant to Education Law §3214.
 - 2. A "removal" means a removal for disciplinary reasons from the student's current educational placement other than a suspension and also means a change in placement to an interim alternative educational setting (IAES) ordered by an impartial hearing officer because the student poses a risk of harm to himself/herself or others and a change of placement to an IAES for behavior involving weapons, illegal drugs or controlled substances made by a Superintendent in conjunction with a Superintendent's hearing.

An "IAES" means a temporary educational placement for a period of up to 45 days, other than the student's current placement at the time the behavior precipitating the IAES placement occurred, that enables the student to continue to progress in the general curriculum, although in another setting, to continue to receive those services and modifications, including those described on the student's current individualized education program (IEP), that will enable the student to meet the goals set out in such IEP, and include services and modifications to address the behavior which precipitated the IAES placement that are designed to prevent the behavior from recurring.

- 2. School personnel may order the suspension or removal of a student with a disability from his or her current educational placement as follows:
 - a. The Board or a Principal may order the placement of a student with a disability into an IAES, another setting or suspension for a period not to exceed five consecutive school days and not to exceed the amount of time a non- disabled student would be subject to suspension for the same behavior.
 - b. The Superintendent may order the placement of a student with a disability into an IAES, another setting or suspension for up to 10 consecutive school days, inclusive of any period in which the student has been suspended or removed under subparagraph (a) above for the same behavior, if the Superintendent determines that the student has engaged in behavior that warrants a suspension and the suspension or removal does not exceed the amount of time non-disabled students would be subject to suspension for the same behavior.
 - c. The Superintendent may order additional suspensions of not more than 10 consecutive school days in the same school year for separate incidents of misconduct, as long as those removals do not constitute a change of placement.
 - d. The Superintendent may order the placement of a student with a disability in an IAES to be determined by the Committee on Special Education (CSE), for the same amount of time that a student without a disability would be subject to discipline, but not more than 45 days, if the student carries or possesses a weapon to school or to a school function, or the student knowingly possesses or uses illegal drugs, or sells or solicits the sale of a controlled substance while at school or a school function, or causes serious bodily harm to another at school.

- 1) A "Weapon" is defined as 1) a firearm, as defined in §921 of Title 18, United States Code, for purposes of the Gun-Free Schools Act, 2) a corrosive substance, or 3) a device of substance capable (through its design or alteration) of inflicting physical harm, including but not limited to ammunition, knives, "stun" guns, pellet guns, laser pointers, pyrotechnics, explosives or incendiary bombs, or dangerous chemicals.
- 2) "Controlled substance" means a drug or other substance identified in certain provisions of the federal Controlled Substances Act specified in both federal and State law and regulations applicable to this policy.
- 3) "Illegal drugs" means a controlled substance except for those legally possessed or used under the supervision of a licensed health-care professional or that is legally possessed or used under any other authority under the Controlled Substance Act or any other federal law.
- 3. Subject to specified conditions required by both federal and State law and regulations, an impartial hearing officer may order the placement student with a disability in an IAES setting for up to 45 days at a time, if maintaining the student in his or her current educational placement poses a risk of harm to the student or others.

B. Change of Placement Rule

- 1. A disciplinary change in placement means a suspension or removal from a student's current educational placement that is either:
 - a. for more than 10 consecutive school days; or
 - b. for a period of 10 consecutive school days or less if the student is subjected to a series of suspensions or removals that constitute a pattern because they cumulate to more than 10 school days in a school year and because of such factors as the length of each suspension or removal, the total amount of time the student is removed and the proximity of the suspensions or removals to one another.
- 2. School personnel may not suspend or remove a student with disabilities if imposition of the suspension or removal would result in a disciplinary change in placement based on a pattern of suspension or removal.

However, the District may impose a suspension or removal, which would otherwise result in a disciplinary change in placement, based on a pattern of suspensions or removals if the CSE has determined that the behavior was not a manifestation of the student's disability, or the student is placed in an IAES for behavior involving weapons, illegal drugs or controlled substances.

C. Special Rules Regarding the Suspension or Removal of Students with Disabilities

- 1. The District's Committee on Special Education shall:
 - a. Conduct functional behavioral assessments to determine why a student engages in a particular behavior, and develop or review behavioral intervention plans whenever the District is first suspending or removing a student with a disability for more than 10 school days in a school year or imposing a suspension or removal that constitutes a disciplinary change in placement, including a change in placement to an IAES for misconduct involving weapons, illegal drugs or controlled substances.

If, subsequently, a student with a disability who has a behavioral intervention plan and who has been suspended or removed from his or her current educational placement for more than 10 school days in a school year is subjected to a suspension or removal that does not constitute a disciplinary change in placement, the members of the CSE shall review the behavioral intervention plan and its implementation to determine if modifications are necessary.

If one or more members of the CSE believe that modifications are needed, the District shall convene a meeting of the CSE to modify such plan and its implementation, to the extent the committee determines necessary.

- b. Conduct a manifestation determination review of the relationship between the student's disability and the behavior subject to disciplinary action whenever a decision is made to place a student in an IAES either for misconduct involving weapons, illegal drugs or controlled substances or because maintaining the student in his current educational setting poses a risk of harm to the student or others; or a decision is made to impose a suspension that constitutes a disciplinary change in placement.
- 2. The parents of a student who is facing disciplinary action, but who has not been determined to be eligible for services under IDEA and Article 89 at the time of misconduct, shall have the right to invoke applicable procedural safeguards set forth in federal and state law and regulations if, in accordance with federal and state statutory and regulatory criteria, the District is deemed to have had knowledge that their child was a student with a disability before the behavior precipitating disciplinary action occurred. If the District is deemed to have had

such knowledge, the student will be considered a student with a disability for discipline purposes.

- a. The Superintendent, Principal or other school official imposing a suspension or removal shall be responsible for determining whether the student is a student deemed to have a disability.
- b. A student will not be considered to have a disability for discipline purposes if, upon receipt of information supporting a claim that the District had knowledge the student was a student with a disability, the District either:
 - 1) conducted an individual evaluation and determined that the student is not a student with a disability, or
 - 2) determined that an evaluation was not necessary and provided notice to the parents of such determination, in the manner required by applicable law and regulations.

If there is no basis for knowledge that the student is a student with a disability prior to taking disciplinary measures against the student, the student may be subjected to the same disciplinary measures as any other non-disabled student who engaged in comparable behaviors.

However, if a request for an individual evaluation is made while such non-disabled student is subjected to a disciplinary removal, an expedited evaluation shall be conducted and completed in the manner prescribed by applicable federal and state law and regulations. Until the expedited evaluation is completed, the non-disabled student shall remain in the educational placement determined by the District, which can include suspension.

- 1) The District shall provide parents with notice of disciplinary removal no later than the date on which decision is made to change the placement of a student with a disability to an IAES for either misconduct involving weapons, illegal drugs or controlled substances or because maintaining the student in his/her current educational setting poses a risk of harm to the student or others; or a decision is made to impose a suspension or removal that constitutes a disciplinary change in placement. The procedural safeguards notice prescribed by the Commissioner shall accompany the notice of disciplinary removal.
- 2) The parents of a student with disabilities subject to a suspension of five consecutive school days or less shall be provided with the same opportunity for an informal conference available to parents of non-disabled students under the Education Law.

- 3) Superintendent hearings on disciplinary charges against students with disabilities subject to a suspension of more than five school days shall be bifurcated into a guilt phase and a penalty phase in accordance with the procedures set forth in the Commissioner's Regulations incorporated into this code.
- 4) The removal of a student with disabilities, other than a suspension or placement in an IAES, shall be conducted in accordance with the due process procedures applicable to such removals of non-disabled students, except that school personnel may not impose such removal for more than 10 consecutive days, or for a period that would result in a disciplinary change in placement, unless the CSE has determined that the behavior is not a manifestation of the student's disability.
- 5) During any period of suspension or removal, including placement in an IAES, students with disabilities shall be provided services as required by the Commissioner's regulations incorporated into this code.

D. Expedited Due Process Hearings

- 1. An expedited due process hearing shall be conducted in the manner specified by the Commissioner's Regulations incorporated into this code, if:
 - a. The District requests such a hearing to obtain an order of an impartial hearing officer placing a student with a disability in an IAES where school personnel maintain that it is dangerous for the student to be in his or her current educational placement, or during the pendency of due process hearings where school personnel maintain that it is dangerous for the student to be in his or her current educational placement during such proceedings.
 - b. The parent requests such a hearing from a determination that the student's behavior was not a manifestation of the student's disability, or relating to any decision regarding placement from a determination of whether the suspension or removal constitutes a disciplinary change of placement, or from a CSE recommendation to change the placement of the student after the IAES term expires, including but not limited to any decision to place the student in an IAES.
 - 1) During the pendency of an expedited due process hearing or appeal regarding the placement of a student in an IAES for behavior involving weapons, illegal drugs or controlled substances, or on grounds of dangerousness, or regarding a determination that the behavior is not a manifestation of the student's disability for a student who has been placed in an IAES, the student shall remain in the IAES pending the decision of the impartial hearing officer or

until expiration of the IAES placement, whichever occurs first, unless the parents and the District agree otherwise.

- 2) If school personnel propose to change the student's placement after expiration of an IAES placement, during the pendency of any proceeding to challenge the proposed change in placement, the student shall remain in the placement prior to removal to the IAES, except where the student is again placed in an IAES.
- 2. An expedited due process hearing shall be completed within 15 business days of receipt of the request for a hearing. Although the impartial hearing officer may grant specific extensions of such time period, he or she must mail a written decision to the District and the parents within five business days after the last hearing date, and in no event later than 45 calendar days after receipt of the request for a hearing, without exceptions or extensions.

E. Referral to law enforcement and judicial authorities

In accordance with the provisions of IDEA and its implementing regulations:

- 1. The District may report a crime committed by a child with a disability to appropriate authorities, and such action will not constitute a change of the student's placement.
- 2. The District shall, in cases involving the reporting of a crime by a student who has been classified as a student with a disability, transmit a copy of the student's special education and disciplinary records for consideration by the appropriate law enforcement authorities to whom it has reported the crime after consent of the student's parent has been obtained or as otherwise provided under the federal Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act.

CODE OF CONDUCT

CORPORAL PUNISHMENT

Corporal punishment is any act of physical force upon a student for the purpose of punishing that student. Corporal punishment of any student by any district employee is strictly forbidden. In addition, the use of aversive interventions is strictly prohibited.

However, in situations where alternative procedures and methods that do not involve the use of physical force cannot reasonably be used, reasonable physical force may be used to:

- 1. Protect oneself, another student, teacher or any person from physical Injury.
- 2. Protect the property of the school or others.
- 3. Restrain or remove a student whose behavior interferes with the orderly exercise and performance of District functions, powers and duties, if that student has refused to refrain from further disruptive acts.

The District will file all complaints about the use of corporal punishment with the Commissioner of Education in accordance with Commissioner's Regulations.

CODE OF CONDUCT

STUDENT SEARCHES AND INTERROGATIONS

The Board of Education is committed to ensuring an atmosphere on school property and at school functions that is safe and orderly. To achieve this kind of environment, any school official authorized to impose a disciplinary penalty on a student may question a student about an alleged violation of law or the District Code of Conduct. Students are not entitled to any sort of "Miranda"-type warning before being questioned by school officials, nor are school officials required to contact a student's parent/guardian before questioning the student. However, school officials will tell all students why they are being questioned.

The Board authorizes the Superintendent of Schools, Building Principals, Assistant Principals, the school nurse and district security officials to conduct searches of students and their belongings in accordance with this policy and the District's Code of Conduct. If the authorized school official has reasonable suspicion to believe that the search will result in evidence that the student violated the law or the District Code of Conduct.

An authorized school official may conduct a search of a student's belongings that is minimally intrusive, such as touching the outside of a book bag, without reasonable suspicion, so long as the school official has a legitimate reason for the very limited search.

An authorized school official may search a student or the student's belongings based upon information received from a reliable informant. Individuals, other than the district employees, will be considered reliable informants if they have previously supplied information that was accurate and verified, or they make an admission against their own interest, or they provide the same information that is received independently from other sources, or they appear to be credible and the information they are communicating relates to an immediate threat to safety. District employees will be considered reliable informants unless they are known to have previously supplied information that they knew was not accurate.

Before searching a student or the student's belongings, the authorized school official should attempt to get the student to admit that he or she possesses physical evidence that they violated the law or the District Code of Conduct, or get the student to voluntarily consent to the search. Searches will be limited to the extent necessary to locate the evidence sought.

Whenever practicable, searches will be conducted in the privacy of administrative offices and students will be present when their possessions are being searched.

A. Student Lockers, Desks and other School Storage Places

The rules in this Policy and the District's Code of Conduct regarding searches of students and their belongings do not apply to student lockers, desks and other school storage places. Students

have no reasonable expectation of privacy with respect to these places and school officials retain complete control over them. This means that student lockers, desks and other school storage places may be subject to search at any time by school officials, without prior notice to students and without their consent.

B. Strip searches

A strip search is a search that requires a student to remove any or all of his or her clothing, other than an outer coat or jacket. In general, the Board prohibits district staff from conducting strip searches of students. If, under extraordinary circumstances, an authorized school official has reasonable suspicion to believe it is necessary to conduct a strip search of a student, the Building Principal or his/her designee shall make a determination. Any strip search must be conducted by an authorized school official of the same sex as the student, in the presence of another district professional employee also of the same sex as the student. The district shall attempt to notify the student's parent/guardian by telephone before conducting a strip search, or in writing after the fact if the parent/guardian could not be reached by telephone.

C. Student Backpack/Belongings

In addition to random at school level student backpack/belongings searches, it may be necessary to search individual student backpack/belongings based on regularly determined safety/security concerns. Parents/guardians will receive notification with regard to individual student searches.

D. Documentation of Searches

The authorized school official conducting the search shall be responsible for promptly recording the following information about each search:

- 1. Name, age and grade of student searched.
- 2. Reasons for the search.
- 3. Name of any informant(s).
- 4. Purpose of search (that is, what item(s) were being sought).
- 5. Type and scope of search.
- 6. Person conducting search and his or her title and position.
- 7. Witnesses, if any, to the search.
- 8. Time and location of search.
- 9. Results of search (that is, what items(s) were found).
- 10. Disposition of items found.
- 11. Time, manner and results of parental notification.

The Principal or the Principal's designee shall be responsible for the custody, control and disposition of any illegal or dangerous item taken from a student. The Principal or his or her designee shall clearly label each item taken from the student and retain control of the item(s), until the item is turned over to the police. The Principal or his or her designee shall be responsible for personally delivering dangerous or illegal items to police authorities.

E. Police Involvement in Searches and Interrogations of Students

District officials are committed to cooperating with police officials and other law enforcement authorities to maintain a safe school environment. Police officials, however, have limited authority to interview or search students in schools or at school functions, or to use school facilities in connection with police work. Police officials may enter school property or a school function to question or search a student or to conduct a formal investigation involving students only if they have:

- 1. A search or an arrest warrant;
- 2. Probable cause to believe a crime has been committed on school property or at a school function; or
- 3. Probable cause to believe that a crime is about to be committed on school property or at a school function which will endanger the health and safety of students and/or staff.

Before police officials are permitted to question or search any student, the Principal or his or her designee shall first try to notify the student's parent/guardian to give the parent/guardian the opportunity to be present during the police questioning or search. If the student's parent/guardian cannot be contacted prior to the police questioning or search, the questioning or search shall not be conducted, unless the student is 16 years of age or older. The Principal or designee will also be present during any police questioning or search of a student on school property or at a school function.

Students who are questioned by police officials on school property or at a school function will be afforded the same rights they have outside the school. This means:

- 1. They must be informed of their legal rights.
- 2. They may remain silent if they so desire.
- 3. They may request the presence of an attorney.

F. Child Protective Services Investigations

Consistent with the district's commitment to keep students safe from harm and the obligation of school officials to report to child protective services when they have reasonable cause to suspect that a student has been abused or maltreated, the district will provide data and assistance to local child protective services workers, or members of a multi-disciplinary team accompanying such workers, who are responding to allegations of suspected child abuse, and/or neglect, or custody investigations. Such data and assistance include access to records relevant to the investigation, as well as access to any child named as a victim in a report of suspected abuse or maltreatment, or a sibling of that child, or a child residing in the same home as the named victim. Such "access" to a child includes making a child available for an interview without a court order or the consent of the parent/guardian when CPS encounters circumstances that warrant interviewing the child apart from the family/household member or the home/household where the child abuse or maltreatment allegedly occurred.

All requests by child protective services to interview a student on school property shall be made directly to Principal or his or her designee. The Principal shall immediately notify the Superintendent of Schools of such communication. Child protective service workers and any associated multi-disciplinary team members must comply with the district's procedures for visitors, provide identification, and identify the child(ren) to be interviewed.

The Principal or designee shall decide if it is necessary and appropriate for a school staff member, including but not limited to an administrator or school nurse, to observe the interview either from inside or outside the interview room

A child protective services worker may not remove a student from school property without a court order, unless the worker reasonably believes that the student would be subject to danger of abuse if not he or she were not removed from school before a court order can reasonably be obtained. If the worker believes the student would be subject to danger of abuse, the worker may remove the student without a court order and without the parent/guardian's consent.

Ref: Social Services Law §425

18 NYCRR §432.3

Safford Unified School District #1 et al. v. Redding, 129 S. Ct. 2633 (2009)

Vassallo v. Lando, 591 F.Supp.2d 172 (E.D.N.Y. (2008))

Phaneuf v. Fraikin 448 F.3rd 591 (2006)

New Jersey v. TLO, 469 U.S. 325 (1985)

In re Gregory, 82 N.Y.2d 588 (1993)

People v. Scott D., 34 N.Y.2d 483 (1974)

People v. Singletary, 37 N.Y.2d 310 (1975))

People v. Overton, 20 N.Y.2d 360 (1969)

M.M. v. Anker, 607 F.2d 588 (2d Cir. 1979)

Opinion of Counsel, 1 EDR 800 (1959)

PROCEDURES FOR USE OF METAL DETECTION IN THE THREE VILLAGE CENTRAL SCHOOL DISTRICT

The following procedure will complement the following School Board Policies:

5300.25 Prohibited Student Conduct

5300.26 Weapons

5300.55 Student Search and Interrogations

5300.65 Public Conduct on School Property

School officials operating metal detectors must comply with the following procedures for the use of such devices:

Public and Student Notification

Students shall be notified in writing at the beginning of the school year that metal detector searches shall take place periodically throughout the school year but shall not be given any specific dates in advance.

On days when a metal detector search is to be conducted, signs will be posted outside staffed entrances announcing the use of metal detection. The signs will state:

"School safety is our most important priority. All students entering school buildings are subject to a hand held metal detection scan in order to ensure that weapons and illegal substances are kept out of the district's buildings".

When a metal detector search is being conducted, students shall only be allowed to enter school through designated entrances.

Students who will be Searched

All students entering any school district building where metal detection is present are subject to metal detection scanning under the authority of the building administrator or their designee.

Metal Detection Procedures

- The operation of the "Garrett 1165190 Super Scanner V Metal Detector" or comparable model will be tested as per the manufacture's specifications prior to use.
- The scanning shall be conducted by authorized school officials designated in subsection 5300.55 of the District Code of Conduct. All students shall be scanned and/or searched by school officials of the same sex.
- All students entering the school shall be subject to the metal detector search, unless the school officials conducting the search choose to limit the search by any random formula. For example, if the lines become too long, school officials may decide to search every second or third student. School officials are prohibited, however, from selecting a particular student to search unless there is reasonable suspicion to believe that the search will result in evidence that the student violated the law and/or the District Code of Conduct and/or District Policy.
- The school official shall approach the student to be searched and explain the scanning process.
- Students who are subject to metal detection search will be asked to remove all metal objects from their pockets, bags, and belongings. If a student refuses to cooperate, the school official must notify the Principal or Administrator who is stationed nearby to monitor the search.
- The student will be asked if all the metallic items have been removed from themselves or their belongings.
- The student-along with their bag/backpack will be scanned from toes to head in all directions without touching their body.
- If a student's bag / parcel activates the metal detector, the school official shall request the student to open the container in question so that the official can look for weapons and/or dangerous instruments and/or prohibited items.
- If a student's body or person activates the metal detector, the school official must repeat the request to remove all metal objects from his/her pockets and/or person. A second scan of the student's person shall then be conducted.
- Should an item be detected during the second scan, the person will be removed to a private area where a more thorough (pat-down) search shall be conducted.
- Prior to the pat-down search, the school official shall ask the student for a third time to remove any metal objects from his/her pockets and/or person. The pat-down search shall then be conducted in the area on the student's person where the device was activated. The pat-down search is only aimed at locating the item which activated the metal detector

- If the school official feels an object during the pat-down search, the student shall be given an opportunity to remove the object. If the student declines or refuses, the school official may then remove the object. If the object, once removed, appears to be the one which activated the metal detector, the pat-down search shall cease. The school official shall then scan the student again with the metal detector. The pat-down search can be continued only if the subsequent scan activates the metal detector again.
- If the item removed from the student as a result of the above procedures may be legitimately brought onto school premises, it shall be returned to the student.
- If the possession of the item removed from the student violates the law and/or the District Code of Conduct and/or District Policy, such property shall be confiscated, and the student may be disciplined accordingly.
- Students who fail to cooperate with school personnel in the performance of their duties under these procedures may be subject to discipline for insubordination.
- A receipt shall be given should any item be seized during the search.
- The administrator will complete documentation as prescribed in paragraph "C" of subsection 5300.55 of the "Code of Conduct".
- Nothing in the procedures set forth above shall limit the authority of school officials to otherwise search a student when there is reasonable suspicion that he/she is in possession of an item which violates the law and/or District Policy and/or the Code of Conduct.

CODE OF CONDUCT

VISITORS TO THE SCHOOLS

The Board recognizes that the success of the school program depends, in part, on support by the larger community. The Board wishes to foster a positive climate where members of the community have the opportunity to observe the hard work and accomplishments of the student, teachers and other staff. Since schools are a place of work and learning, however, certain limits must be set for such visits. The Principal or his or her designee is responsible for all persons in the building and on the grounds. For these reasons, the following rules apply to visitors to the schools:

- 1. Anyone who is not a regular staff member or student of the school will be considered a visitor.
- 2. All visitors to the school must <u>enter through the designated single point of entry</u>. There they will be required to <u>present photo identification</u>, sign the visitor's register and will be issued a visitor's identification badge, which must be worn at all times while in the school or on school grounds. The visitor must return the identification badge to the Principal's office before leaving the building.
- 3. Visitors attending school functions that are open to the public <u>after regular school hours</u>, such as parent-teacher organization meetings or public gatherings, are not required to register.
- 4. Teachers are expected not to take class time to discuss individual matters with visitors.
- 5. Any unauthorized person on school property will be reported to the Principal or his or her designee. Unauthorized persons will be asked to leave. The police may be called if the situation warrants.
- 6. All visitors are expected to abide by the rules for public conduct on school property contained in this code of conduct.
- 7. The Board of Education authorizes the Superintendent of Schools to temporarily ban any visitor from all school property who refuses to abide by the rules for public conduct on school property contained in this Code of Conduct. The visitor will remain banned pending the next Board of Education Meeting, at which time the Board may pass a resolution banning the visitor for a specified period of time.

CODE OF CONDUCT

PUBLIC CONDUCT ON SCHOOL PROPERTY

The District is committed to providing an orderly, respectful environment that is conducive to learning. To create and maintain this kind of an environment, it is necessary to regulate public conduct on school property and at school functions. For purposes of this section of the Code, "public" shall mean all persons when on school property or attending a school function including students, teachers and district personnel.

The restrictions on public conduct on school property and at school functions contained in this Code are not intended to limit freedom of speech or peaceful assembly The District recognizes that free inquiry and free expression are indispensable to the objectives of the District. The purpose of this Code is to maintain public order and prevent abuse of the rights of others.

All persons on school property or attending a school function shall conduct themselves in a respectful and orderly manner. In addition, all persons on school property or attending a school function are expected to be properly attired for the purpose they are on school property.

A. Prohibited Conduct

No person, either alone or with others, shall:

- 1. Intentionally injure any person or threaten to do so.
- 2. Intentionally damage or destroy school district property or the personal property of a teacher, administrator, other district employee, or any person lawfully on school property, including graffiti or arson.
- 3. Disrupt the orderly conduct of classes, school programs, or other school activities.
- 4. Distribute or wear materials on school grounds or at school functions that are obscene, advocate illegal action, appear libelous, obstruct the rights of others, or are disruptive to the school program.
- 5. Intimidate, harass, or discriminate against any person on the basis of race, color, creed, national origin, religion, age, gender, sexual orientation, or disability.
- 6. Enter any portion of the school premises without authorization or remain in any building or facility after it is normally closed.
- 7. Obstruct the free movement of any person in any place to which this code applies.
- 8. Violate the traffic laws, parking regulations, or other restrictions on vehicles.
- 9. Possess, consume, sell, distribute, or exchange alcoholic beverages, controlled substances, or be under the influence, either on school property or at a school function.
- 10. Possess or use weapons in or on school property or at a school function, except in the case of law enforcement officers, or except as specifically authorized by the school district.
- 11. Loiter on or about school property.

- 12. Gamble on school property or at school functions.
- 13. Refuse to comply with any reasonable order of identifiable school district officials performing their duties.
- 14. Willfully incite others to commit any of the acts prohibited by this code.
- 15. Violate any federal or state statute, local ordinance or Board policy while on school property or while at a school function.
- 16. Take photographs and/or record video footage on school property or at a school function using any device when taken to threaten and/or harass a student or school <u>Dd</u>istrict official.

B. Penalties

Persons who violate this code shall be subject to the following penalties:

- 1. Visitors Their authorization, if any, to remain on school grounds or at the school function shall be withdrawn and they shall be directed to leave the premises. If they refuse to leave, they shall be subject to ejection.
- 2. Students They shall be subject to disciplinary action as the facts may warrant, in accordance with the due process requirements.
- 3. Tenured faculty members They shall be subject to disciplinary actions the facts may warrant in accordance with Education Law §3020-a or any other legal rights that they may have.
- 4. Staff members in the classified service of the civil service entitled to the protection of Civil Service Law §75 They shall be subject to immediate ejection and to disciplinary action as the facts may warrant in accordance with Civil Service Law §75 or any other legal rights that they may have.
- 5. Staff members other than those described in subdivisions 3 and 4 They shall be subject to warning, reprimand, suspension or dismissal as the facts may warrant in accordance with any legal rights they may have.

8. Enforcement

The Principal or his/her designee shall be responsible for enforcing the conduct required by this code.

When the Principal or his/her designee sees an individual engaged in prohibited conduct, which in his or her judgment does not pose any immediate threat of injury to persons or property, the Principal or his/her designee shall tell the individual that the conduct is prohibited and attempt to persuade the individual to stop. The Principal or his/her designee shall also warn the individual of the consequences for failing to stop. If the person refuses to stop engaging in the prohibited conduct, or if the person's conduct poses an immediate threat of injury to persons or property, the Principal or his/her designee shall have the individual removed immediately from school property or the school function. If necessary, local law enforcement authorities will be contacted to assist in removing the person.

The District shall initiate disciplinary action against any student or staff member consistent with the "Penalties" section above. In addition, the District reserves its right to pursue a civil or criminal legal action against any person violating the code.

CODE OF CONDUCT

DISSEMINATION AND REVIEW

A. Dissemination of Code of Conduct

The Superintendent of Schools or Designee will work to ensure that the community is aware of this Code of Conduct by:

- 1. Providing the Code of Conduct on the District website. Copies will be provided upon request.
- 2. Providing a plain-language summary of the code to all students at a general assembly held at the beginning of each school year.
- 3. A summary of the Code of Conduct is provided in the District calendar.
- 4. Providing all current teachers and other staff members with a copy of the Code and a copy of any amendments to the Code as soon as practicable after adoption.
- 6. Providing all new employees with a copy of the current Code of Conduct when they are first hired.
- 7. Making copies of the Code available for review by students, parents and other community members.

The Board will sponsor an in-service education program for all District staff members to ensure the effective implementation of the Code of Conduct. The Superintendent may solicit the recommendations of the District staff, particularly teachers and administrators, regarding in-service programs pertaining to the management and discipline of students.

B. Review of Code of Conduct

The Board will review this Code of Conduct every year and update it as necessary. In conducting the review, the Board will consider how effective the code's provisions have been and whether the code has been applied fairly and consistently.

The Board may appoint an advisory committee to assist in reviewing the code and the District's response to Code of Conduct violations. The committee will be made up of representatives of student, teacher, administrator and parent organizations, school safety personnel and other school personnel.

Before adopting any revisions to the Code, the Board will hold at least one public hearing at which school personnel, parents, students and any other interested party may participate.

The Code of Conduct and any amendments to it will be filed with the Commissioner of Education no later than 30 days after adoption.

Adopted: June 26, 2001 Revised: October 25, 2011 Revised: November 12, 2002 Revised: July 2, 2012 Revised: June 8, 2004 Revised: July 2, 2013 Revised: August 27, 2014 Revised: September 22, 2005 Revised: November 8, 2005 Revised: July 1, 2015 Revised: October 9, 2007 Revised: July 13, 2016 Revised: September 8, 2009 Revised: February 8, 2017 Revised: November 30, 2010 Revised: August 22, 2018

Revised: December 12, 2018 Revised: July 10, 2019 Revised: July 8, 2020 Revised: July , 2021

Three Village Central School District

Website: www.threevillagecsd.org

Student Handbook Code of Conduct For Parents & Students

WARD MELVILLE HS 380 Old Town Road East Setauket, NY 11733 631-730-4900

William S. Bernhard
Principal
631-730-4908

Ward Melville HS
Jay Negus
Administrative Dean of
Students
Matthew Fyfe
Dean of Students
631-730-4934

3 VILLAGE ACADEMY 100 Suffolk Avenue Stony Brook, NY 11790

> Gustave Hueber Principal 631-730-5051

P.J. GELINAS JHS 25 Mud Road Setauket, NY 11773 631-730-4700

> Corinne Keane Principal 631-730-4703

PJ Gelinas JHS Christopher Muscarella Dean of Students 631-730-4751 R.C. MURPHY JHS 351 Oxhead Road Stony Brook, NY 11790 631-730-4800

> Brian Biscari Principal 631-730-4808

RC Murphy JHS Brian Pickford Dean of Students 631-730-4857

ATHLETICS

Kevin Finnerty
Executive Director
Health, Physical Education,
Recreation & Athletics
Office: (631) 730-4985
Fax: (631) 730-4980

Whether you are an athlete or you participate in co-curricular clubs and activities you are responsible for reading this ENTIRE document

INTRODUCTION

The Board of Education is committed to providing a safe and orderly educational environment where students receive and district personnel provide quality educational services without disruption or interference. Three Village is also committed to maintaining, in the schools, a climate of mutual respect and dignity to promote learning within a safe environment. Responsible behavior by students, teachers, other district personnel, parents and other visitors is essential to achieving this goal.

The District has a long-standing set of expectations for conduct on school property and at school functions. These expectations are based on the principles of civility, mutual respect, citizenship, character, tolerance, honesty and integrity.

The Board recognizes the need to clearly define these expectations for acceptable conduct on school property, identify the possible consequences of unacceptable conduct, and to ensure that discipline, when necessary, is administered promptly and fairly. To this end, the Board adopts this Code of Conduct ("Code").

Unless otherwise indicated, this Code applies to all students, school personnel, parents and other visitors when on school property or attending a school function.

The Three Village Central School District has also developed a scholastic athletic and cocurricular program with educational value for all students. It focuses on the development of self-esteem and individual skills as well as fostering an atmosphere of teamwork, citizenship and sportsmanship. In addition, we believe our athletic and cocurricular programs emphasize discipline, leadership, respect, loyalty, cooperation and altruism. Our programs emphasize lifelong activities where participation by as many students as possible is a goal. Our athletic programs as well as many of our cocurricular programs, are competitive and/or selective and are not recreational programs. In our athletic program winning is neither the most important nor only outcome of the program but is a focus especially at the varsity and junior varsity levels. Likewise, in our competitive co-curricular clubs and team, winning is neither the most important nor only outcome of the program. In all programs, our coaches and advisors strive to foster the attributes mentioned above as well as developing a collegial and cooperative spirit where all students can thrive, grow and develop academically, socially and emotionally.

The district has set high goals and standards and all personnel and students are encouraged to strive to achieve them while maintaining a proper perspective on sports, school and life.

Our athletic programs are governed by the rules, regulations and procedures prescribed by the New York State Public High School Athletic Association, Section XI and the Three Village Central School District.

STUDENT PARTICIPATION REQUIREMENTS

The requirements for participation are the student must be a bona fide student fully registered and taking at least 4 subjects plus physical education.

Each student must follow, adhere and abide by the regulations set forth by the Three Village Central School District Code of Conduct and, where appropriate, Section XI.

TRANSPORTATION

Students will be transported to and from away contests and activities by school authorized vehicles only. Parents or students are not permitted to transport students to or home from away contests without prior approval from the advisor or coach. Requests must be in writing and submitted to the building or district administrator at least two (2) days prior to the contest for approval. Late buses are provided home following practices and club meetings each day. Students misbehaving on the buses will be excluded from district transportation.

PARENT/ADVISOR/COACH COMMUNICATION

PARENT/ADVISOR RELATIONSHIP

Parenting, coaching and advising are extremely rewarding. By establishing an understanding of each role, we are better able to accept the actions of the other and provide greater benefit to students. As parents, when your children become involved in our program, you have a right to understand what expectations are placed on your child. This begins with clear communication from the coach or advisor of your child's program.

COMMUNICATION YOU SHOULD EXPECT FROM YOUR CHILD'S ADVISOR OR COACH

- Philosophy of the team/club
- Expectations the advisor or coach has for your child
- Locations and times of all practices and contests
- Club or team requirements and rules
- Discipline consequences that results in the denial of your child's participation

COMMUNICATION ADVISORS AND COACHES EXPECT FROM PARENTS

- Concerns expressed directly to the advisor or coach
- Notification of any schedule conflicts well in advance

APPROPRIATE CONCERNS TO DISCUSS WITH ADVISORS AND COACHES

- The treatment of your child, mentally and physically
- Ways to help your child improve

· Concerns about your child's behavior

Advisors and coaches are professionals. They make judgments based on what they believe to be the best for all students involved. As you have seen from the list above, certain topics can and should be discussed with your child's advisor or coach. Other topics, such as those described in the next segment, must be left to the discretion of the advisor or coach.

Advisors and coaches are making decisions that are in the best interest of all members of the team/club or program. Please be supportive of their decisions.

STUDENT BEHAVIORAL CODE OF CONDUCT

The Mission Statement of the Three Village Central School District is to foster the quest for excellence by creating educational, co-curricular and competitive experiences within an atmosphere of sportsmanship, cooperation, collegiality and teamwork. Successful programs develop individual and team/club potential by promoting high standards of competence, character, civility and citizenship. Each of these qualities is defined as follows:

COMPETENCE

A student in a quality program is competent in terms of: skill development, knowledge of the game/strategies, fitness/conditioning/healthy behavior.

CHARACTER

A student in a quality program demonstrates: responsibility to self, team/club and school, accountability, dedication, trustworthiness/fair play, self-control.

CIVILITY

A student in a quality program demonstrates civility towards others showing: respect, fairness, caring.

CITIZENSHIP

A student in a quality program demonstrates citizenship through actions show evidence of: altruism loyalty, commitment, teamwork, role modeling.

Being a member of a Three Village Central School District club or team is a privilege, not a right. You are responsible, as a member of a team/club, with your advisors, parents and teachers to continually strive to better yourselves in all the 4C's.

BEHAVIOR VIOLATIONS

1. Three Village students are to avoid taking, selling, consuming any type of alcohol or drug not prescribed by a physician including cigarettes or tobacco products including e-cigarettes. Students found in violation of this policy may be suspended from team/club participation up to 5 months or longer.

- 2. Three Village students are not to engage in any behavior inside or outside of school that is illegal or an embarrassment to the team/club. Students in violation of this clause are subject to the Student Code of Conduct and may be suspended or eliminated from team/club participation.
- 3. It is our goal to learn and teach in a healthy, vibrant and safe environment where all are valued, welcomed and accepted. To that end, all adults are expected: (1) To model acceptable behavior with other students and adults at all times. (2) To be diligent in identifying unacceptable behavior. (3) To bring to the attention of school officials those who violate these rules.

THREE VILLAGE CENTRAL SCHOOL DISTRICT BOARD OF EDUCATION HAZING POLICY

Hazing, a form of harassment whether it be physical or verbal, should not be condoned by a victim, an advisor, a coach, staff, family, school administrator, fellow student and especially team/club members. Any student found to have committed an act of harassment against any student in the district, including team/club members, will be faced with disciplinary action which may include suspension from their team/club and from school. Team/club members are fully expected to notify an advisor, coach or other school official if any such behavior is observed. School employees who fail to enforce this policy or any violation of the Three Village Central School District Code may be subject to disciplinary action.

Co-Curricular/Athletics Code Of Conduct 5300 Subsection 5300.25

A. Conduct that is disorderly.

Examples of disorderly conduct include, but shall not be limited to:

- 1. Running in hallways.
- 2. Making unreasonable noise.
- 3. Using language or gestures that are profane, lewd, vulgar, or abusive.
- 4. Obstructing vehicular or pedestrian traffic, including illegal parking on school property.
- 5. Engaging in any willful act which disrupts the normal operation of the school community.
- 6. Trespassing. Students are not permitted in any school building or on school property, other than the one they regularly attend, without permission from the administrator in charge of the building.
- Misusing computer/electronic communications devices, including any unauthorized use of computers, software, or Internet/Intranet account; accessing inappropriate websites; or any other violation of Section §5300.21.
- 8. Displaying any item, including stickers, pennants, or patches on ones' person, clothing and/or accessories including, but not limited to a backpack, knapsack, or computer devices that are vulgar, offensive, or denigrate others

7.

8.9. The use of smart devices, cell phones, and other unauthorized electronic devices (i.e. recording devices, cell phones, smart phones, ear buds, smart glasses, and cameras) are not

permitted during class time and during any testing, unless specifically directed by teachers. The use of recording devices, of any kind, is not permitted on school property and District transportation without the permission of the Building Principal/designee.

9.10. No skateboarding/skating in school or on school property unless part of a physical education class.

B. Consequences of Unauthorized Smart Device or Cell Phone Use in Classroom Environment

- 1. First Offense: If a student is caught using a smart device, cell phone, or wearing earbuds without teacher/staff authorization after being directed by the teacher/staff member to remove the earbuds and/or put the smart device away, an automatic principal's two day in school suspension will be applied
- 2. Second Offense: If a student is caught using a smart device, cell phone, or wearing earbuds without teacher/staff authorization after being directed by the teacher/staff member to remove the earbuds and/or put the smart device away, an automatic principal's three day out of school suspension will be applied.
- 3. Third and Subsequent Offense: If a student is caught using a smart device, cell phone, or wearing earbuds without teacher/staff authorization an automatic principal's five-day out of school suspension will be applied, as well as an automatic referral to a Superintendent's Hearing will be applied for possible additional consequences.

C. Conduct that is insubordinate.

Examples of insubordinate conduct include, but shall not be limited to:

- 1. Failing to comply with the reasonable directions of teachers, school administrators, or other school employees in charge of students, or otherwise demonstrating disrespect.
- 2. Unexcused lateness or cutting classes, truancy, missing, or leaving school without permission.
- 3. Failure to report to assigned detention or in-school suspension.

D. Conduct that is disruptive.

Examples of disruptive conduct include, but shall not be limited to:

- 1. Failing to comply with the directions or requests of teachers, school administrators, or other school personnel in charge of students.
- 2. Verbal, written, or graphic statements, communications, expressions, or illustrations that are threatening to person or property.

E. Conduct that is violent and/or rises to the level of assault as defined herein.

Examples of violent conduct include, but shall not be limited to:

- 1. Committing an act of violence (such as hitting, kicking, spitting, biting, punching, scratching or throwing of objects) upon a teacher, administrator, or other school employee, or attempting to do so.
- 2. Committing an act of violence including assault (such as hitting, kicking, spitting, biting, punching, scratching or throwing of objects) upon another student or any other person lawfully on school property, or attempting to do so.
- 3. Possessing a weapon. Authorized law enforcement officials are the only persons permitted to have a weapon in their possession while on school property or at a school function.

- 4. Displaying what appears to be a weapon.
- 5. Threatening to use any weapon.
- 6. Using a weapon.
- 7. Threatening to, or intentionally, damaging or destroying the personal property of a student, teacher, administrator, other district employee or any person lawfully on school property, including graffiti or arson.
- 8. Threatening to, or intentionally damaging or destroying school district property, including graffiti or arson.
- 9. Threatening to or intentionally using food to cause physical, psychological, and/or emotional injury.

F. Conduct that endangers the safety, morals, health, or welfare of others.

Examples of such conduct include, but shall not be limited to:

- 1. Lying to school personnel.
- 2. Stealing district property, the property of other students, school personnel, or any other person lawfully on school property or attending a school function.
- 3. Using vulgar or abusive language, cursing or swearing.
- 4. Defamation, which includes making false statements or representations about an individual or identifiable group of individuals that harm the reputation of the person or the identifiable group by demeaning them.
- 5. Harassment, bullying, threats, or intimidation directed at an identifiable individual or group which are intended to be, or which a reasonable person would perceive as ridiculing, demeaning, or threatening. [Ref: Policy 0115]
- 6. Intimidation, threats, or bullying, including engaging in actions or statements that put an individual in fear of bodily harm and/or emotional discomfort. [Ref: Policy 0115]
- 7. Discrimination and harassment against any student by employees or students, on school property or at a school function that creates a hostile environment by conduct which, with or without physical contact, and/or by verbal threats, intimidation or abuse, is of so severe a nature that it:
 - a. has or would have the effect of unreasonably and substantially interfering with a student's educational performance, opportunities or benefits, or mental, emotional and/or physical well-being; or
 - b. reasonably causes, or would reasonably be expected to cause, a student to fear for his or her physical safety. Prohibited conduct includes, but is not limited to, threats, intimidation or abuse based on a person's actual or perceived race, color, weight, national origin, ethnic group, religion, religious practices, disability, sexual orientation, gender or sex.
- 8. Cyber bullying that causes a disruption to the educational environment.
- 9. Any form of electronic messaging that causes disruption to the educational environment (e.g. sexting, tweeting, instant messaging, displaying or sharing lewd photographs).
- 10. Hazing, which includes any intentional or reckless act directed against another for the purpose of initiation into, affiliating with or maintaining membership in any school sponsored activity, organization, club, or team. Hazing related to any non-school related activity is also forbidden. [Ref: Policy 0115]
- 11. Harassment, including overt or subtle behaviors and comments of a racial, religious, and ethnic nature that are offensive, unwelcome, interfere with another's work or academic performance, or create an intimidating, hostile, or offensive working or educational environment. [Ref: Policy 0115] Please refer to Section H: Consequences of Racial/Religious/Ethnic comments/behaviors in the full Code of Conduct.

- 12. Inappropriate touching and/or indecent exposure, that is, exposure to sight of the private parts of the body in a lewd or indecent manner. [Ref: Policy 0115]
- 13. Sexual harassment, including overt or subtle behaviors and comments that are offensive, unwelcome, interfere with another's work or academic performance, or create an intimidating, hostile, or offensive working or educational environment. [Ref: Policy 0115]
- 14. Selling, using or possessing obscene material. [Ref: Policy 0110]
- 15. Smoking a cigarette, cigar, pipe, e-cigarette, or using chewing or smokeless tobacco, a vaporizer, e-cigarettes, or liquid nicotine. [Ref: Policy 5312.1 Drug and Alcohol Abuse]
- 16. Possessing, consuming, selling, distributing, or exchanging tobacco products, e-cigarettes, vaporizers, vapes, liquid nicotine, alcoholic beverages or legal or illegal substances, or being under the influence of either or being in possession of drug paraphernalia. Inappropriately using or sharing prescription and over-the-counter drugs. "Illegal substances" shall include, but are not limited to inhalants, marijuana, cocaine, LSD, PCP, amphetamines, heroin, steroids, look-alike drugs, and any substance commonly referred to as "designer drugs" or synthetic drugs, such as synthetic cannabinoids. [Ref: Policy 5312.1] Please refer to Section G: Consequences of Vaping in the full Code of Conduct.
- 17. Possessing aerosol sprays (deodorants, body sprays, AXE) on school property. Aerosol sprays may pose a serious health risk to our students and staff. Spraying aerosols on campus is not permitted. Aerosol containers will be confiscated.
- 18. Consuming, buying, or selling energy drinks on school property. Energy drinks shall mean a beverage that is not strictly regulated by the Food and Drug Administration and that contains 75 or more milligrams of caffeine per 8 fluid ounces and generally includes a combination of other supplements such as methylxanthines, B vitamins, herbal ingredients, and other ingredients, which are advertised as being specifically designed to provide or increase energy.
- 19. Gambling
- 20. Initiating a report warning of fire, bomb, or other catastrophe without valid cause, misuse of 911, or discharging a fire extinguisher.
- 21. Using food, medication, drugs, or substances to bully and/or cause fear, intimidation or actual bodily harm.
- 22. The use of drones on school property, except under the direct supervision of staff, is strictly prohibited.

G. Code of Academic Integrity

The core purpose of public education is to maximize the success of each student's learning and personal development so s/he becomes a successful part of our democratic, multi-ethnic society. To fulfill these expectations, students must be prepared to accept responsibility for their actions and the impact they may have on others. To promote these values, the foregoing Academic Code of Conduct has been established.

Academic Dishonesty

The following constitute examples of academic dishonesty. This list is not meant to be all-inclusive:

- 1. Copying: Obtaining information pertaining to any work to be submitted for evaluation by deliberately observing the work of another.
- 2. Plagiarism: Representing the work(s) or idea(s) of another, not necessarily those of a student, as one's own through the deliberate omission of acknowledgement or reference.
- 3. Cribbing: The use or attempted use of prohibited material, information, or study aids in any work submitted for evaluation.

- 4. Fraud: The alteration of any documentation relating to the grading process including tampering with an instructor's grade book (including electronic gradebook).
- 5. Fabrication: The unauthorized falsification or invention of any information in a work submitted for evaluation, including the use of a purchased term/research paper.
- 6. Sabotage: The intentional or reckless destruction of another student's work to be submitted for evaluation.
- 7. Complicity: The intentional performance of an act with knowledge that it will assist another to commit an act of academic dishonesty as that term is defined in the Code.
- 8. Facilitation: Assisting someone in committing plagiarism, fabrication, cheating, or any other type of academic dishonesty.

WHAT DOES UNACCEPTABLE BEHAVIOR LOOK LIKE?

Specific examples/terms that we wish to prevent are found below. Please understand that some of these may belong to other categories of infractions/offenses. Additionally, this list is not fixed or complete. Here are some terms that we in the Three Village Central School District have discussed and identified as bullying, hazing, or harassment:

Verbal Infractions: Mocking, name calling, coercion, taunting, negatively teasing, threats (verbal, written or electronic).

Physical Infractions: Pushing, shoving, kicking, hitting, spitting, extortion, stalking, restraining, humiliating acts, defacing property, demeaning, use of violence of threats.

Social Alienation and Shunning: Gossiping, rumor spreading, ridicule, slurs (ethnic, religious, sexual, gender-based or racial) social rejection, grudge carrying, threatening looks, public humiliation, and maliciously excluding.

Students are asked to report all inappropriate actions immediately to a teacher, advisor, coach, administrator or parent.

Substance Abuse Policy

It is the goal of the Three Village Central School District to provide a substance-free environment in the schools and to create and maintain a climate that encourages people with substance abuse problems to seek and receive help. The Board of Education has adopted a policy (5312) prohibiting the possession, use, purchase or sale of drugs, alcohol or tobacco anywhere on school grounds, at functions, on field trips, or during their athletic seasons.

Student Violating Policy

Students found to be in violation of school policy will be suspended from school for five days and from teams/clubs up to a full year. Detailed steps for the policy are outlined in the district's full Code of Conduct.

Upon returning to school the student and parent/guardian will be required to have a re-entry interview with the mental health support staff to determine any intervention services needed.

Student Self-Disclosure

When a student reveals to a staff member that they are substance involved it is the responsibility of the staff member to assist the student in the intervention and self-disclosure process. The process must involve the immediate intervention of the mental health support staff to determine the level of safety/risk, appropriate services and make referrals to outside agencies.

Students involved in the Self-Disclosure process will not be excluded from teams/clubs as long as they follow the Self-Disclosure Contract. Further violations will result in suspension.

Questions involving the Substance Abuse Policies can be addressed to the Principal, Athletic Director, Building Administration, Guidance Counselor, or Mental Health Staff.

VAPING

Smoking a cigarette, cigar, pipe, e-cigarette, or using chewing or smokeless tobacco, a vaporizer, e-cigarettes, or liquid nicotine. [Ref: Policy 5312.1 - Drug and Alcohol Abuse]

Possessing, consuming, selling, distributing, or exchanging tobacco products, e-cigarettes, vaporizers, vapes, liquid nicotine, alcoholic beverages or legal or illegal substances, or being under the influence of either or being in possession of drug paraphernalia. Inappropriately using or sharing prescription and over-the-counter drugs. "Illegal substances" shall include, but are not limited to inhalants, marijuana, cocaine, LSD, PCP, amphetamines, heroin, steroids, look-alike drugs, and any substance commonly referred to as "designer drugs" or synthetic drugs, such as synthetic cannabinoids. [Ref: Policy 5312.1]

CONSEQUENCES OF VAPING

First Offense: If a student is caught vaping or in the possession of a vaping device (electronic cigarettes and other devices such as Juuls, vape pens, e-hookahs, atomizers and any other instrument used to deliver chemical substances to be inhaled or otherwise absorbed into the body), or vaping material, an automatic principal's five-day out of school suspension will be applied.

Should the student also be in possession of an illegal substance the consequences shall also include a referral for a Superintendent's Hearing.

Second or Subsequent Offense: If a student is caught vaping or in possession of a vaping device (electronic cigarettes and other devices such as Juuls, vape pens, e-hookahs, atomizers and any other instrument used to deliver chemical substances to be inhaled or otherwise absorbed into the body), or vaping material, for a second or subsequent time, an automatic principal's five-day out

of school suspension will be applied, as well as an automatic referral to a Superintendent's Hearing will be applied for additional consequences.

STUDENT CONTRACT: PARENT

As a parent who is also committed to the education, maturity and success of your child, we encourage you to make a formal commitment as described below. Our partnership together will increase the likelihood of a successful season/year, regardless of the final win/loss record of the team/club.

PARENT'S COMMITMENT

I understand that as a parent I play a vital role in the development of my child's ability and character, and therefore in the success of the Three Village Central School District's programs. Recognizing this role, I therefore commit to the following as a parent of a member of the:

Be a positive role model so that through my own actions I can help to make sure that my child has the best experience possible

Be a "team/club" fan, not a "my kid" fan

Weigh what my child says in any controversy, and work with advisors and coaches to gather all the facts

Show respect for the opposing players, advisors, spectators, and support groups

Be respectful of all officials' decisions

Not instruct my child before or after a club contest, because it may conflict with the coach's advisor's plans and strategies

Praise students in their attempt to improve themselves as students and as people

Gain an understanding and appreciation for the rules of the event

Recognize and show appreciation for an outstanding play by either team/club

Help my child learn that success is experience in the development of his/her skills, and that he/she can feel positive about their skill development during the season, regardless of the team/club's record

Take time to talk with advisors or coaches in an appropriate manner, including proper time and place, if I have a concern. Demonstrate respect to and for the advisor or coach by following the designated chain of command

Support the alcohol, tobacco and other drug-free policies of our school by refraining from the use of any such substances before and during contests. I will also support my child and hold him/her accountable for their commitment to non-use of substances, improper behavior inside and outside of school including hazing, harassment and bullying as outlined in the Code of Conduct

ATHLETIC PARTICIPATION REQUIREMENTS

The requirements for participation are the student must be a bona fide student fully registered and taking at least 4 subjects plus physical education.

Each student must follow, adhere and abide by the regulations set forth by the Three Village Central School District Athletic Department Student-Athlete Code of Conduct.

Each student must pass an athletic physical each year. Prior to the beginning of each season, the student and parent must fill out an update card if they are playing more than one sport. Information on physicals can be obtained by calling the school nurse.

STUDENT ATHLETE AND CO-CURRICULAR ACADEMIC ELIGIBILITY

The primary focus for all student-athletes is their work in the area of academics. While no formal Academic Eligibility Policy is in place, those students not attending classes or performing up to their ability in their school work will be temporarily or permanently suspended from athletic participation at any time. Any student absent or arriving late to school and is not exempt from the absence or lateness, (student must be in by Homeroom), cutting a class, in detention, ISS or OSS, shall not participate in any co-curricular activity, club, practice or game on that day.

TRY OUTS AND SELECTION OF TEAMS

As an athletic department we try to keep as many students on our Varsity and JV teams as possible. Size of team is determined by safety factors, such as, how many athletes a coach can adequately supervise. Additionally, team numbers are determined by the number of athletes who can positively contribute in some way. Unfortunately, some teams have to make "selections" or "cuts". This is a decision that is one of the most difficult decisions a coach must make. When athletes are evaluated during a tryout period coaches are asked to utilize as many "objective factors" as possible. These factors differ from sport to sport, but examples might be timing students in an endurance run, shorts sprints or sport specific skills. Some subjective elements come into play like effort and attitude. Generally speaking, if a high school athlete does not make a particular team there are other teams that do not cut; football, wrestling, cross country, winter track, spring track, which the students can join. Once the first scrimmage has taken place students may not switch to another sport without permission from the athletic office.

PRACTICE SESSIONS

Generally, practices are held between 3:00 – 5:00 pm. Some teams, i.e. volleyball and basketball, may practice as late as 9:00 pm because of limited gym space. Practices may also vary in their location based on the availability of gyms or fields. Additionally, in the spring because of poor weather indoor practices may utilize gyms from 3:00 -9:00 pm. Being a member of a Varsity or JV team means a greater commitment than at the junior high level. Many teams practice and have contests on Saturdays. Sunday practices are avoided unless there is a need due to contest schedules. Teams may only practice 6 days

in a week during the course of the regular season. You are expected to attend every scheduled practice, scrimmage and contest (not to exceed 6 days per week.) If you must miss a scheduled practice, scrimmage or game, it is your responsibility to give prior notice to your coach, in writing if possible, dated and signed by you and your parents(s)/guardian(s) (preferably with 24 hour notice). Failure to do so may result in disciplinary action by the coach. Students absent from school for an excused absence (i.e. death in the family) may participate in a practice, scrimmage or contest on the day they are absent from school as long as proper notification/documentation has been provided to the school. Interscholastic athletics are an extension of the physical education curriculum. Participating in athletics is a privilege not a right. If you are not prepared or do not participate in your regularly scheduled physical education class, you are ineligible to participate in practice, a scrimmage or contest for that day.

CLUB TEAMS

It is recognized that many times an athlete may have numerous commitments. Some of these may include participation in outside activities including club and/or regional teams. It is important that the athlete and their parents understand that as a member of an interscholastic team, their primary commitment is to their school team. Therefore, all in-season athletes must attend their in-season practice and games as a top priority over any outside activity or team. In season, coaches may not reprimand an athlete for participating in an intramural practice during their free time.

SPORTS SPECIALIZATION

We encourage our athletes to play sports year-round. There are some students who choose to "focus" on one sport in order to increase their chances at athletic scholarships. It has been our experience that a well-rounded athlete is one who can exhibit a variety of athletic skills which multi-sport involvement fosters. Most of our athletes who have gone on athletically to the college ranks have been two or three sport athletes.

FAMILY VACATIONS

When parents and student-athletes choose to take their family vacations during sport seasons it must be understood that the time missed by the student-athlete can affect team chemistry, physical conditioning, and the athlete's appropriate preparedness for a contest. At the high school level family vacations will impact the student's ability to make the team or playing time. Coaches will make every effort to inform parents and student-athletes of the season schedule as far in advance as possible.

RESPONSIBILITY FOR UNIFORMS AND EQUIPMENT

All uniforms and equipment issued must be returned to the coach at the end of the season. Students who lose equipment or uniforms will be billed for replacement pieces. Be aware that a replacement jersey or sweat top can be very costly because of the special order that must be placed. Students who have not returned school issued equipment or

uniforms will not be given another in the next season until the previous uniform and/or compensation has been received.

SECTION XI TEAM, COACHES, FANS, SCHOOL SPORTSMANSHIP

Every contest played in Suffolk County is rated by coaches and officials for sportsmanship. Ratings are collected after each game and sent to Section XI. Results are then tabulated for each team relative to other teams in their league. Additionally, each school gets a post season general rating. It is the expectation that all athletes, coaches and spectators demonstrate a high level of sportsmanship and follow the Section XI Code of Conduct.

RETURNING TO PRACTICE FOLLOWING AN INJURY

You must report every injury and illness to your parent(s)/guardian(s), your coach and the nurse. If you receive medical attention from a physician for any injury or illness, you may not return to practice, scrimmage or compete in a contest until you receive a written medical release from the physician or health care facility where you were treated. The note must include the date of the injury/illness, a diagnosis and a date to return to participation. The note must be verified through the health office and the nurse will give you authorization in writing to give your coach.

NOTE: TO ALL INVOLVED PARTIES:

Please sign the last page of this document or acknowledge this document in Final Forms. By signing or acknowledging this document you state that you have read and understand the entire document and the expectations of all involved in the educational mission of athletics and the co-curricular programs of the Three Village Central School District. This document must be acknowledged/signed by parent, student/athlete and the coach/advisor before the student/athlete may participate in any athletic/co-curricular contest, event, club, or team. If Final Forms is NOT available to the District, please sign this page below and return it to:

69

202<u>1</u>0-202<u>2</u>1 STUDENT HANDBOOK/CODE OF CONDUCT FOR PARENTS & STUDENTS

Dated:	, 202 <u>1</u> 0		
		Signature of Student	
			, Student
		Please Print Your Name	
Dated:	, 202 <u>1</u> 0	Signature of Parent/Guardian	
		Please Print Your Name	, Parent/Guardian
Dated:	, 202 <u>1</u> 0	Signature of Parent/Guardian	
		Please Print Your Name	, Parent/Guardian

RECRUITING AND HIRING

The Board of Education believes that the quality of the district's employees in large part determines the quality of the education offered to the district's students. As the employer for the school district, the Board will provide and maintain qualified and certified instructional and support personnel to carry out the educational programs of the district.

The Assistant Superintendent for Human Resources shall implement and maintain a high-quality recruiting and hiring program to attract, secure and retain the best-qualified staff to meet the needs of students and the district.

New or Revised Positions

The Assistant Superintendent for Human Resources will develop recommended qualifications for all new positions in the district and review the qualifications for all existing positions as necessary. The Superintendent must approve all recommended qualifications for all new and existing positions. The Board must approve the qualifications for all new positions in the district and revisions of the qualifications for existing positions.

The Assistant Superintendent for Human Resources shall refer all proposals for the creation or reclassification of all unclassified (non-instructional) positions and a statement of the duties for these positions to the Suffolk County Department of Human Resources, Personnel and Civil Service for classification.

The Assistant Superintendent for Human Resources shall develop job descriptions that incorporate the qualifications and job duties for all positions in the school district The Superintendent must approve the job descriptions for all positions in the district.

Recruiting

The district will seek the most qualified candidates for vacant positions by recruiting from a variety of sources, including present staff. District employees may apply for all positions for which they meet the certification and other stated qualifications.

The Board and its employees will not discriminate in recruiting and hiring personnel on the basis of age, color, creed, disability, marital status, national origin, race, religion, sex or any other status protected by federal or state law. The Board is also committed to recruiting, employing, supporting and retaining racially, ethnically and linguistically diverse – as well as culturally competent – administrative, instructional, and support personnel.

The Board will practice due diligence in finding the most qualified persons for any open positions. The Board recognizes that some specialized positions are difficult to fill because of

shortages of qualified candidates. In rare instances, the Board may need to hire a retired public employee, in which case it will follow the Commissioner's regulations for securing a §211 waiver. When recruiting for an open position the Board will first undertake a thorough and good faith search for a certified and qualified individual who will not require such a waiver for employment

Hiring

Through standard recruiting and hiring procedures, the Assistant Superintendent for Human Resources will ensure that candidates for district employment meet all the qualifications set for the position sought. The district will comply with all the requirements of the Education and Civil Service laws, including any fingerprinting requirements.

The Assistant Superintendent for Human Resources will recommend individuals for employment to the Superintendent. The Superintendent must recommend all individuals for employment to the Board. The Board must approve all individuals to be employed by the school district.

Ref:

Age Discrimination in Employment Act (ADEA), 29 USC §§ 621 et seq. (prohibiting discrimination on the basis of age)

Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA), 42 USC §§ 12101 et seq. (prohibiting discrimination on the basis of disability)

Civil Rights Act of 1964 (Title VII), 42 USC §§ 2000e et seq. (prohibiting discrimination on the basis of color, national origin, race, religion and sex)

Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (Section 504), 29 USC § 794 (prohibiting discrimination on the basis of disability)

Title IX, 20 USC §§ 1681 et seq. (prohibiting discrimination on the basis of sex)

New York State Constitution, article V, § 6 (requiring public employees be appointed on the basis of merit and fitness)

Civil Service Law §§ 22, 40-44, 61(1) (rules on classified positions)

Education Law §§ 1604(8), 1709(16), 2503(3), 2554(2), 3012(1)(a) (board's authority to hire employees)

Education Law §§ 1604(39), 1709(39), 1804(9), 1950(4), 2503(18), 2554(25) (fingerprinting requirements)

Executive Law §§ 290 et seq. (prohibiting discrimination on the basis of age, color, creed, disability, marital status, national origin, race or sex)

8 NYCRR § 80-5.5 (§211 waiver process)

Adoption date:

Adoption Date:

Classification:

Revised Dates: repealed (old) BOE Policy 9230, Professional Staff Recruiting and Hiring, replaced with current (new) BOE Policy 9240, Recruiting and Hiring, May , 2021

PROFESSIONAL STAFF RECRUITING AND HIRING

Through its employment policies, the Board of Education will attempt to attract, secure, and hold qualified personnel for all professional positions. The selection program will be based upon finding candidates who will devote themselves to the education and welfare of the children attending the public schools.

Recruiting procedures shall enable the district to seek qualified candidates from a variety of sources, including present staff. Any current employee of the District may apply for any position for which he/she meets certification and other stated requirements.

The Board adheres to the practice of recruiting and hiring personnel without regard to religion, ereed, race, color, marital status, national origin, age, sex or disability.

It will be the duty of the Superintendent of Schools to see that persons nominated for employment in the schools meet all certification requirements of New-York State and requirements of the Board for the type of position for which the nomination is made.

While the Board may accept or reject a nomination, an appointment will be valid only if made with the recommendation of the Superintendent. In the case of a rejection, it is the duty of the Superintendent to make another nomination. No person shall be considered employed until a resolution to that effect has been approved by the Board and a contract executed by the employee.

<u>Ref</u>: Education Law "913; 1604; 2509; 3012 — 8 NYCRR '100.3

Adoption date: December, 1991